
 
June 3, 2014                                      CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                        6:00 p.m. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
PROCLAMATION 

 Proclamation for Explore Summer Reading Week – June 23rd - 29th, 2014 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
4.    CONSENT AGENDA 

a.  Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held May 20, 2014 and Workshop meeting held 
on May 28, 2014. 

b.   Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers 
-     Vouchers Numbers 158422 through 158560 in the amount of $359,219.42. 

 Approval of Payroll Check Numbers 
- Direct Deposit Numbers 31195 through 31347 
- EFT Numbers 616 through 620 
- Payroll Check Numbers 97200 through 97256 

 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 

a. City Administrator 
b. Mayor 
c. Councilmembers 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 1



 
June 3, 2014                                      CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                        6:00 p.m. 
 

 
 

6. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 a.   Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy    
 
 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 a.   Resolution 14-15:  Beckett Landing 
   
 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 
9.         NEW BUSINESS 
 a.   Special Event Permit for the Old Fashioned Fourth of July for Chamber of Commerce  
 b.   Motion to Award the Construction Contract for the 42-Inch Outfall Project  
 c.   Motion to approve the Construction Contract for the Truck Scale 
 d.   Select delegates for AWC Annual Conference 
     
   
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 
 
For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 
 

Thank you for participating in your City Government! 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 2



3



Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 20, 2014 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Present:      Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley     City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao   Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius   City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell   Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Beth Munns    Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Tara Hizon    Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Bob Severns    City Clerk Anna Thompson 
Councilmember Rick Almberg   Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
       Human Resources Director Sara Piccone 
           
         

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 
 

David J. Johnson, Pastor of Oak Harbor First United Methodist Church, gave the invocation, 
and Mayor Scott Dudley lead the pledge of allegiance.  
 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 
  
 

PRESENTATION 
 

Summary of the 2014 Whidbey Island Marathon  
 
Tamra Sipes, Executive Race Director of the 2014 Whidbey Island Marathon, presented the 
summary of the 2014 Whidbey Island Marathon on power point.  The presentation included a 
detailed summary of the publicity, primary and secondary economic impacts of the Marathon on 
Oak Harbor. 
 
Councilmember Hizon inquired about the importance of USA Track and Field Certification 
 
Councilmember Almberg thanked Ms. Sipes for the representation and then requested the data 
to support her conclusions in the economic impact report. 
 
Councilmember Severns asked whether the Marathon should be spread over a 2-day period.  
Ms. Sipes recommended a 1-day Marathon would likely be more successful.  Councilmember 
Severns then mentioned that sponsorship donations had decreased in recent years.  Ms. Sipes 
explained that because the contract for Race Director Services was executed in August of 2013, 
there was little time to procure a larger number of sponsors. 
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2014 - Page 1 
 
 4



Councilmember Munns asked how Ms. Sipes was able to reserve the Deception Pass Bridge for 
the race.  Ms. Sipes explained that she begins contacting Washington State Department of 
Transportation in September and then works with them on the details throughout the year. 
Councilmember Munns confirmed with Ms. Sipes that contracting with a Race Director early on 
is crucial in order to obtain the greatest number of sponsors possible. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao thanked Tamra Sipes for the excellent presentation and the successful 
outcome of the 2014 Marathon.  He commented on the user friendly website for the Marathon 
linked to the Oak Harbor Website. 

 
Marina Advisory Committee Presentation – Project Priorities and Revenue Enhancement Rec-
ommendations  
 
Ken Hewlett, Chairman of the Oak Harbor Marina Advisory Committee, presented the Marina 
Advisory Committee which entailed a summary of its purpose, functions, and history.  
 
The Advisory Committee’s Conclusions are determined in two phases: 
 
Phase 1  – includes projects which are easily and quickly implemented 
Phase 2 – includes projects that are farther reaching and which will include greater expenses, 
permit requirements and involvement with the Planning Department, and increased staff time.  
 
Harbor Master Chris Sublet provided a power point presentation which informed the Council of 
the new projects implemented at the Oak Harbor Marina including upcoming events. 
 
Ken Hewlett provided the Council with an Improvement Report for the Marina proposed by the 
Marina Advisory Board.  Mr. Hewlett reminded the Council that new projects require prepara-
tion, various permits, and often times approval from several agencies. 
 
The Marina Advisory Committee determined that their priorities and conclusions were very simi-
lar to the Marina Comprehensive Plan compiled in 2005 and noted that time is fast approaching 
to make improvements on the Marina in order to preserve its safety and utility.  
 
Mr. Hewlett announced that Marina Advisory Board is ready to improve the aging Marina facility, 
built in the 1970s, and will work diligently with the Council.  
 
Councilmember Munns suggested that the Marina Advisory Board come before a future City 
Council Workshop to explain what projects are needed and what moneys are available in the 
budget.  
 
Mayor Dudley agreed that this issue should be presented on a future City Council Workshop 
soon.   
 
Councilmember Almberg agreed with Councilmember Munns that hosting a Workshop regard-
ing the Marina’s needs is important and essential.  
  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion: Councilmember Hizon moved to approve the Agenda as presented.  Councilmem-   
 Councilmember Servatius seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously.   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2014 - Page 2 
 
 5



CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the citizen comment period at 6:55 p.m., no comments, closed at 
6:56 p.m. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a.   Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held May 6, 2014 
b.   Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:  
  -     Vouchers Numbers 158229 through 158421 in the amount of $554,713.41 
 Approval of Payroll Check Numbers: 

- Direct Deposit Numbers 31067 through 31194 
- EFT Numbers 613 through 615 
- Payroll Check Numbers 97185 through 97199 

c.   Motion to approve Councilmember Beth Munns’ Excused Absence Request for May 
28, 2014 Workshop Meeting and June 3, 2014 Regular Council Meeting 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to approve the Consent Agenda Items as presented. 
     Motion Seconded by Councilmember Servatius, unanimously carried.   

 
 

MAYOR, STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Administrator 
 
City Administrator Dr. Cort reminded City Council that the Special Meeting Tour of the former 
Whidbey Island Bank property will take place Wednesday, May 21st at 10:00 a.m. 
 
The May workshop is set for May 28th and among the items to be discussed includes: establish-
ing an ad hoc committee for use of the Post Office Oak Tree wood, and how Council would like 
to participate in the 2015 Oak Harbor Centennial.  
 
On July 3rd at 6:00 p.m. at Windjammer Park, the Arts Commission has scheduled to dedicate 
the art piece Conical Etude created by Rick Nash, and donated by Wally Funk, to the City of 
Oak Harbor. 
 
Mayor  
 
Councilmembers 
 
Councilmember Almberg confirmed that the AWC conference is scheduled for 14th and 15th of 
August. 
 
Councilmember Munns announced that Deanna Emery received HR Certification and congratu-
lated her on behalf of the City Council. 
 
Councilmember Hizon suggested making Park Events publicized on the Oak Harbor website.  
She also inquired from staff on the status of the Council’s request to allow vendors and beer 
gardens at Windjammer Park.  Dr. Cort responded that he would check on the progress.  
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2014 - Page 3 
 
 6



Councilmember Hizon then asked Chief Green about a recent credit card scam.  Chief Green 
acknowledged that the Police Department has been informed of the scam and are in the pro-
cess of gathering data to open an investigation.  The public may simply contact ICOM in order 
to make a police report. 
 
Councilmember Servatius commented on the progress of the Waste Water Treatment Plant. 
 
Mayor Dudley announced a five (5) minute recess at 7:06 p.m. 
 
Mayor Dudley reconvened the meeting at 7:13 p.m. 

 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

 
Resolution 14-16:  Human Resources Department Reorganization  
Human Resources Director Sara Piccone provided the staff report. 
 
Ms. Piccone explained staff’s proposed restructuring of the HR department.  She directed the 
Council to review the relevant Agenda Bill for the financial advantages of this restructure.   
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 7:16 p.m., no comment.  Mayor 
Dudley closed the public comment period at 7:16 p.m.  
 
Councilmember Hizon asked when the proposed changes would be implemented.  Ms. Piccone 
responded that the changes would become effective June 1st. 
 
Resolution 14-16:     Human Resources Department Reorganization  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 14-16, seconded by    
               Councilmember Almberg, unanimously carried. 
 
 
Ordinance 1691:  Park Facility Reservation System 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 7:21 p.m., no comment, closed 
the public comment period at 7:21 p.m.  
 
Councilmember Servatius suggested monitoring the $75 after-hours fee for key pick-up after 
Utility hours to determine whether the fee amount is effective.  
 
Councilmember Munns strongly encouraged staff to inform the citizens of the $75 after-hours 
key pick-up fee. 
 
Councilmember Almberg asked whether there is an ongoing problem obtaining keys after-hours.  
Ms. Rosen answered that in general there is not an ongoing problem.   
 
Councilmember Hizon asked Ms. Rosen to explain the process to obtain the RV keys for the 
public watching via live stream.   
 
 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2014 - Page 4 
 
 7



Ordinance 1691:   Park Facility Reservation System  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Hizon moved to adopt Ordinance 1691, seconded by Councilmember    
               Severns, unanimously carried.   
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

Resolution 14-18:  Surplus of Two Swap Loader Trucks and One Ten-Yard Dump Truck 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 7:26 p.m., no comment, closed at 7:26 p.m. 
 
Resolution 14-18:  Surplus of Two Swap Loader Trucks and One Ten-Yard Dump Truck 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 14-18, seconded by         
               Councilmember Campbell, unanimously carried. 
 
 
Nightclub License Application for the Haze Lounge  
 
City Attorney Nikki Esparza announced that this item is a quasi-judicial hearing and asked that  
any interested Councilmembers recuse themselves. 
 
Councilmembers Hizon, Almberg and Severns recused themselves and left the Council 
chambers. 
 
Ms. Esparza stated that Council Rule 19 requires us to determine whether the Councilmembers  
have any interest in this proceeding which requires a recusal.  Ms. Esparza asked the following  
questions of the Council:  
 
Does any Councilmember:  
 
a) have knowledge of any member conducting business or have conducted business with 

the parties?   
b) have a pecuniary or nonpecuniary interest in the outcome of the proceeding?  
c) have knowledge that his or her employer has a financial interest in the property or area 

which will be impacted by this decision tonight? 
d) live or own property within 300 feet of the area which will be impacted by this decision 

tonight?  
e) have any special knowledge about the substance of the merits of this proceeding which 

would or could cause the member to prejudge the outcome of this proceeding? 
f) believe that he or she cannot sit and hear this matter fairly and impartially both as to the 

respected positions of the proponents and opponents in this proceeding? 
 

g) Has any Councilmember had any ex parte contacts concerning this matter? 
h) Is there any member of the audience, who because of the appearance of fairness doc-

trine, wishes to disqualify any member of the Council from hearing this matter? 
 
No other Elected Officials were disqualified from the proceedings and the quasi-judicial hearing 
proceeded without further delay. 

Regular Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2014 - Page 5 
 
 8



 
Nightclub License Application for the Haze Lounge  
Police Chief Ed Green presented the staff report. 
 
Chief Green explained his duties to investigate the applicant for secondary impacts on the  
surrounding areas such as noise, traffic, and parking, and provided the Council with a summary  
of his findings.   
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 7:42 p.m.  
 
Citizen Comments 
 

Ariel Morgan 
Melissa Stewart, Mark Stewart’s wife  

 
Mayor Dudley closed the public hearing at 7:43 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Servatius was concerned with the noise and cleaning enforcements created the  
by the Lounge in terms of unwanted impacts on neighboring businesses. 
 
Councilmember Munns inquired about the status of the former owners’ Liquor License.  Chief  
Green explained that the Stewarts (current owners of the Haze Lounge) had an option to pur 
chase the Liquor License but chose not to. 
 
Councilmember Paggao was concerned with the safety of the Haze Lounge with only one door  
accessible for ingress and egress with a maximum capacity of 49 individuals.  
 
Chief Merrill explained the building and fire codes dictate that there is no need for additional  
exits for 49 guests. 
 
Nightclub License Application for the Haze Lounge 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt the Nightclub License Application for the  
               Haze Lounge pursuant to the nine (9) stipulated conditions. Seconded by  
               Councilmember Munns, unanimously carried. 
 
Councilmembers Hizon, Severns and Almberg returned to the Council meeting at 7:49 p.m. 
 
   
Resolution 14-22:  LGIP Investment Resolution  
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 7:52 p.m., no comment, closed at 7:52 p.m.  
 
Councilmember Almberg sought clarification for the underlying protection of the funds.  Mr.  
Merriman explained that the Full Faith of the State of Washington provides protection.   
Councilmember Almberg asked specifically how the funds are provided protection by the State.    
Mr. Merriman explained there is a separate account for the City’s investment within the State.    
Mr. Almberg then asked whether one fund can be a drain on another fund and Mr. Merriman  
answered that such a result is not likely since the separate investments are kept in individuals  
accounts.  

Regular Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2014 - Page 6 
 
 9



 
Resolution 14-22:  LGIP Investment Resolution  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 14-22.  Motion seconded by  
               Councilmember Campbell, unanimously carried. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion regarding the Professional Services Agreement for the 2015 Whidbey Island  
Marathon Race Director. 
 
City Administrator Dr. Cort announced that this item was requested to be added by 
Councilmemeber Munns at the May 6, 2014 Council Meeting. 
 
Councilmember Munns stated that it is not wise to allow the contract approval to be delayed so 
that the City can adequately prepare for the 2015 Whidbey Island Marathon.  For future con-
tracts, she suggested entering into a Race Director Agreement for the next year’s contract be-
fore the annual race actually takes place.  Councilmember Munns encouraged staff and Council 
to re-evaluate the goals within the Race Director Contract.  She also challenged the Council to 
consider whether the goal is to make money for the City or bring in Revenue and suggested 
raising admission fees.   Councilmember Munns congratulated Tamra Sipes for her services 
and suggested hiring her for next year. 
 
Councilmember Almberg suggested entering into a 2-year contract with the Race Director so 
that there is no delay for the following annual event and to avoid loss of momentum.  Coun-
cilmember Almberg suggested entering into a 2-year contract with Ms. Sipes with an option to 
terminate for nonperformance by Council. 
 
Councilmember Servatius added that he would prefer the Marathon to raise both income and 
Revenue for the City.  He asked whether this contract must go to bid. 
 
City Attorney Nikki Esparza explained that the Mayor has the authority to appoint personal ser-
vices contracts per Oak Harbor Municipal Code and so no bids need be solicited. 
 
Councilmember Severns spoke in support of entering into a 2-year contract with a Race Director 
as soon as possible.  In turn, entering into the contract earlier will produce more sponsors and 
support. 
 
Councilmember Paggao spoke in support to enter into a 2-year contract with Ms. Sipes as soon 
as possible.   
 
Councilmember Campbell added that the goal for the Marathon should be to at least break 
even.    
 
Councilmember Hizon asked what staff needs from the Council to start the Race Director 
Agreement process.   
Dr. Cort explained the appointment of the Race Director rests with the Mayor’s office.  
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2014 - Page 7 
 
 10



Councilmember Almberg asked about the time limitations.  Dr. Cort stated that historically the 
Race Director contract has been signed in June.   
 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved that a two-year contract [for the Race Director  

 of the 2015 Whidbey Island Marathon] be presented to the Council no later than July   
1st, 2014. Motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously passed.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Councilmember Hizon moved to adjorn, seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously 
carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 
 
 
       Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

Regular Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2014 - Page 8 
 
 11



  
Oak Harbor City Council 

Workshop Meeting Minutes 
May 28, 2014 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Present:      Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley     City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tempore Danny Paggao   Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Jim Campbell   City Clerk Anna Thompson 
Councilmember Joel Servatius   Chief of Police Ed Green 
       Finance Director Doug Merriman 
       City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
       Fire Chief Ray Merrill 
       Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
       Human Resources Director Sara Piccone 
       Senior Planner Ethan Spoo   
       Senior Serv. Director Mike McIntyre 
       City Engineer Joe Stowell 
 
Councilmembers Almberg, Hizon, Munns and Severns were not present. 
          

DEPARTMENTAL BRIEFINGS 
 

1. Beckett Landing Preliminary Plat – Development Services 
 
Development Services Director Steve Powers announced that Beckett Landing is a quasi judi-
cial hearing and so the item will not be discussed at the workshop today.  The purpose of the 
item on today’s workshop agenda is to remind the Council of their role at the hearing and to 
avoid any ex parte contacts.   
 
Mayor Dudley suggested if the Council has any procedural questions, they may ask Steve Pow-
ers at this time. 

 
2. Resolution 14-21:  Reimbursement for WWTP – Finance 

 
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided the staff report. 
 
Mr. Merriman explained that this resolution allows the City to reimburse themselves for 
costs incurred on the Waste Water Treatment Plant. 
 
Mayor Dudley added that Mr. Merriman is creating a budget which explains all funds 
applied to the WWTP. 
Workshop Meeting Minutes – May 28, 2014 - Page 1 
 
 12



 
3. 2015-16 Budget Calendar/2015-20 CIP Update – Administration/Finance 

/Development Services 
 

City Administrator Larry Cort provided a summary of the 2015-2016 budget process.   
 
The City’s plan is to work with the Council and Community by establishing goals for Oak Harbor 
which will in turn provide the paradigm for the drafting of the upcoming Biennial Budget. 
 
The primary intent of this discussion point is to provide an update and schedule dates for work-
shops in June which will allow department heads and managers to present Council with their 
specific departmental goals and receive feedback from the Council. 
 
Dr. Cort asked whether special workshops could be scheduled for June 11th, 12th, and 
on the 25th.  The Councilmembers agreed to hold the special workshops on June 11th 
and 12th in the afternoon and June 25th after the regular workshop.  Dr. Cort will confirm 
the dates with the absent Councilmembers. 
 
Councilmember Campbell stated that the City needs to get serious about establishing a 
budget.  Dr. Cort explained that the City must first establish goals in order to begin work 
on the budget. 

 
4. Update on 42” Stormwater Outfall Project – Public Works 

 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided a summary of the 42-inch outfall bids which took place on 
Thursday May 22nd. The low bidder is Strider Construction. 

 
5. Neighborhood Code Enforcement Process – Development Services 

 
Development Services Director Steve Powers provided the update on Code Enforcement cases 
from 2013.  The majority of complaints were weeds and grass. 
 
Last year the Council passed an update in the code enforcement process for staff utilization, 
particularly bifurcating the enforcement process between the common complaints and more 
complex ones.  Mr. Powers provided a handout which shows the new code enforcement pro-
cess’ impact. The department has been utilizing this new process and it has been a success.   
 
Steve Powers reminded the Council and the public how to make a code enforcement complaint.   
 
Councilmember Campbell asked for examples of code enforcement grievances other than grass 
and weeds.  Trash on streets, ongoing noise issues, and complaints dealing with tidiness in 
general are among the other complaints.   
 

Workshop Meeting Minutes – May 28, 2014 - Page 2 
 
 13



Mayor Pro Tem Paggao asked follow-up questions about the new process. 
 

6. Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Review Process – Economic Development 
 

Senior Services/Economic Development Planner Ethan Spoo provided the Council with an up-
date on the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee.  He informed the Council that State Law has 
changed regarding Lodging Tax Committees.  He provided the Council with handouts setting 
out his goals for this year’s application process. 
 
The primary goal is to improve the applicant experience for the Lodging Grant Tax Application.  
At the July 1st Council Meeting, the new application process will be brought before the Council 
for formal adoption.  The Lodging Tax Advisory Committee will provide recommendations before 
the Council on the agenda item. 

 
PENDING AGENDA ITEMS 

 
1. Opportunity Council Draft Lease 

 
City Administrator Dr. Cort reminded the Council that this issue was discussed at the 
last Council Workshop.  The City has been working to draft an updated lease based on 
the requirements from the Council. 
 
City Attorney Nikki Esparza explained the process that she and her office, including 
WCIA, endeavored to update the lease.  She stated that the lease is much more com-
prehensive than the former agreement and encouraged Council to review the new 
lease. 

 
EMERGING ISSUES 

 
1. Establish Working Group with Sno-Isle on Future of Oak Harbor Library 

 
City Administrator Dr. Cort explained that the Oak Harbor Library’s goal is to relocate to down-
town Oak Harbor in order to expand. 
 
City and Library staff are working together to determine the projected benefits of relocating 
downtown and plan to present their findings to the Council.   
 
Councilmember Servatius spoke in favor of the joint working group.  
 
Councilmember Campbell stated that the City should not become finically obligated for this relo-
cation. 
 

Workshop Meeting Minutes – May 28, 2014 - Page 3 
 
 14



Councilmember Campbell inquired whether Skagit Valley College is a proponent of the library’s 
relocation so that they can expand as well. 

 
2. Post Office Oak Tree – Establishing an ad hoc committee to address use of the 

wood 
 
Dr. Cort referenced that in light of the large public interest regarding the Post Office Oak 
Tree, the City will combine an ad hoc committee to determine what should be done with 
the wood.  The committee will actually review the specific parts of the tree.  The goal of 
recommendations by the committee will be how much wood will be set aside for what 
purpose, and the City will implement the recommendations thereafter.  
 
Mayor Dudley asked when more information would be provided to the Council on the 
status of this committee’s recommendations.  Dr. Cort expects the committee to take 
two to three months to make a proposal before Council. 
 
Councilmember Campbell inquired about membership for this ad hoc committee and 
suggested that the active individuals in this matter should be a part of it.  Dr. Cort com-
mented that the City also has an interest to involve individuals with expertise. 

 
3. Oak Harbor Centennial in 2015 

 
City Administrator Dr. Cort asked whether the Council was interested in celebrating Oak 
Harbor Centennial in 2015. 
 
Councilmember Campbell and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao spoke in favor of celebrating 
Oak Harbor Centennial.   
 
The Councilmembers suggested forming an ad hoc committee to plan the Centennial 
celebration. 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Dudley adjourned the meeting at 3:48 p.m. 
 
 
      Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

Workshop Meeting Minutes – May 28, 2014 - Page 4 
 
 15



16



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158422 5/19/2014 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 050914 APR 2014/SALES USE TAX  49,026.83

Total :  49,026.83

 158423 5/22/2014 0007273  CAMPGROUND AUTOMATION SYS, INC 051214 RESERVATION MANAGEMENT SYSTEM  440.50

Total :  440.50

 158424 5/28/2014 0004342  AGC EDUCATION FOUNDATION 938158 REGISTRATION/ROSEN  350.00

Total :  350.00

 158425 5/28/2014 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 51163554 BATTERIES  243.38

Total :  243.38

 158426 5/28/2014 0006551  ALPINE FIRE & SAFETY SYSTEMS 5922185 DRY POWDERS  438.93

Total :  438.93

 158427 5/28/2014 0000034  AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION 4306 WEBSITE JOB LISTING/ASSOCIATE PLANNER  50.00

Total :  50.00

 158428 5/28/2014 0000036  AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS 40554 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL  624.00

Total :  624.00

 158429 5/28/2014 0000046  APPLIED INDUSTRIAL 7002225467 2RSJEM  138.46

Total :  138.46

 158430 5/28/2014 0005001  ARAMARK 938116000 UNIFORM SERVICES  1,103.51

Total :  1,103.51

 158431 5/28/2014 0006865  ARMADA 051914 COLLECTION FEE/COOH ACCT 04-337000-01  125.90

Total :  125.90

 158432 5/28/2014 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0582712-IN FUEL  6,132.83

 4,274.85FUEL0584148-IN

 30,177.72FUEL0585725-in

Total :  40,585.40

 158433 5/28/2014 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON IVC001833 2013 RETRO PROGRAM  11,869.20

1Page:

17



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  11,869.20 158433 5/28/2014 0000055 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON

 158434 5/28/2014 0003410  BAER, DON EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  38.40

Total :  38.40

 158435 5/28/2014 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 148661 VALVE REPAIRS  981.53

Total :  981.53

 158436 5/28/2014 0007474  BEST WESTERN PLUS LACEY 45773 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/PETERSCHMIDT  212.12

Total :  212.12

 158437 5/28/2014 0007471  BILETNIKOFF, JANICE EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  18.46

Total :  18.46

 158438 5/28/2014 0004631  BLAKE, KAY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  100.00

Total :  100.00

 158439 5/28/2014 0002943  BRAUNSTEIN, ANGELA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  23.20

 133.00TRAVEL ADVANCETRAVEL ADVANCE

 13.40TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  169.60

 158440 5/28/2014 0005027  BURT'S SAW & MOWER 2160 VALVE  60.17

Total :  60.17

 158441 5/28/2014 0007478  CAMPBELL, JEFF 052114 STOP CHECK FEE REIMBURSEMENT  31.00

Total :  31.00

 158442 5/28/2014 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 105813285211 SUPPLIES  1,738.66

 483.84SUPPLIES146200285211

Total :  2,222.50

 158443 5/28/2014 0007473  CAPITOL CITY PRESS, INC 97581 INSERTS  328.84

Total :  328.84

 158444 5/28/2014 0006215  CAROLLO 0134281 PROF SVC/WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PREL 28,292.01

 45,833.37PROF SVC/PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING & FACIL0134282

2Page:

18



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  74,125.38 158444 5/28/2014 0006215 0006215  CAROLLO

 158445 5/28/2014 0006016  CARTER, MARGOT L 050714 PROF SVC  500.00

Total :  500.00

 158446 5/28/2014 0000170  CHIEF SUPPLY 029800 BOOTS -93.59

 103.58BOOTS/ENGLE450073

 612.82GLOVES/HOODS453023

Total :  622.81

 158447 5/28/2014 0001433  COLE, DONNA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  100.00

Total :  100.00

 158448 5/28/2014 0005773  COMCAST 8498300290363841 INTERNET  220.27

Total :  220.27

 158449 5/28/2014 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 952328 BUILDING SAND  232.42

Total :  232.42

 158450 5/28/2014 0001126  COSTCO WHOLESALE MEMBERSHIP 249529745 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL  165.00

Total :  165.00

 158451 5/28/2014 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-6941 TUBE  80.12

 21.32GASKET005-49591

Total :  101.44

 158452 5/28/2014 0007476  CUNNINGHAM, DEREK 7037 MOORAGE REFUND  20.15

Total :  20.15

 158453 5/28/2014 0000225  DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE 3287244 BID CALL/SHALLOW PIT TRUCK SCALE  132.30

 266.00BC: WINDJAMMER PARK STORM3287497

Total :  398.30

 158454 5/28/2014 0003430  DALEY, DON 1267 MOORAGE REFUND  317.70

Total :  317.70

 158455 5/28/2014 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-28 PORTABLES  49.95

 49.95PORTABLES1-500619-28

3Page:

19



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158455 5/28/2014 (Continued)0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS

 49.95PORTABLES1-500627-28

 49.95PORTABLES1-500627-29

 99.90PORTABLES1-509920-12

 49.95PORTABLES1-515013-4

 1,319.62TENTS1-515537

 49.95PORTABLES1-515826-3

 99.90PORTABLES1-516260

 125.00PORTABLES1-516763

 125.00PORTABLES1-516764

 99.90PORTABLES1-516765

 49.95PORTABLES1-516766

 49.95PORTABLES1-516767

 49.95PORTABLES1-516768

 49.95PORTABLES1-516769

 49.95PORTABLES1-516770

 49.95PORTABLES1-516771

 49.95PORTABLES1-516772

 385.72INTERVIEW SUPPLIES812659

Total :  2,904.39

 158456 5/28/2014 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 1065A CLEANING SERVICES  31.52

Total :  31.52

 158457 5/28/2014 0007472  ECIVIS, INC 103409 USER LICENSES  9,750.00

Total :  9,750.00

 158458 5/28/2014 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 14-06306 TESTING  1,278.00

Total :  1,278.00

 158459 5/28/2014 0001789  ESPARZA, RONALD W 123113 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 158460 5/28/2014 0007161  EWING 7934975 HUNTER ADJ CHECK/VALVE  57.33

Total :  57.33

 158461 5/28/2014 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK17155 GRIP GIV PR  48.37

4Page:

20



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158461 5/28/2014 (Continued)0002900  FASTENAL

 67.26HDGWAOAK17233

 8.82CONNECTORWAOAK17235

 32.02LDTWAOAK17250

Total :  156.47

 158462 5/28/2014 0006836  FINDLEY, JACKIE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  104.00

Total :  104.00

 158463 5/28/2014 0007405  FISHCER, MARIA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  52.00

Total :  52.00

 158464 5/28/2014 0006717  FLETCHER, STUART 5442 MOORAGE REFUND  106.75

Total :  106.75

 158465 5/28/2014 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  239.74

 62.18CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1572

 62.62CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 56.85CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 57.27CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 91.93CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 40.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 31.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  642.20

 158466 5/28/2014 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 92206 LUMBER  8.12

 16.36CONCRETE92316

 9.82CONCRETE92321

 150.61SCREWS92484

Total :  184.91

 158467 5/28/2014 0000325  FRONTIER FORD 99367 SWITCH  138.53

 229.03BUCKLE99439

Total :  367.56

 158468 5/28/2014 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 13518.00-11 PROF SVC/WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS  19,992.65

Total :  19,992.65

5Page:

21



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158469 5/28/2014 0000999  GRCC/WW 051514 APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATION EXAM/JUPIN  200.00

Total :  200.00

 158470 5/28/2014 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8278 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  940.00

Total :  940.00

 158471 5/28/2014 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC 38828/2 CLAMP  5,687.57

Total :  5,687.57

 158472 5/28/2014 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I3621821 DISCHARGE HOSE  54.35

 315.12GASKETI3625361

 21.74FREIGHTI3625499

Total :  391.21

 158473 5/28/2014 0006118  HEATHMAN LODGE 224163 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/BRAUNSTEIN  380.25

Total :  380.25

 158474 5/28/2014 0000382  HELTSLEY, RAY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  43.29

Total :  43.29

 158475 5/28/2014 0003853  HILTON VANCOUVER WASHINGTON 3122067153 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/ESPARZA  277.80

Total :  277.80

 158476 5/28/2014 0006119  HOLMAN, DAYMAN SCOTT TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  150.00

Total :  150.00

 158477 5/28/2014 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1026669 GUN/ENR AA16/ENRAAA16/SILICONE/16OZ GRTS  49.25

 21.61PLC7WPL-S1053132

 48.14DAWNPLAT2/2G PREM SPRY1090307

 4.29STAKES1100592

 71.68BATH FCT/ANGVLVLL1593317

 5.42BARB MULTIPK2021988

 71.65WAND/SOAP NOZZLE/PW GUN/SWITCH2026415

 9.83STAPLE/TIES/MOUNT BASES2581618

 31.40SPBWALLMT3062719

 1.70ENDCAP3083111

 14.37NOZZLE/STONE3161259

 18.46GR SEED3162695

6Page:

22



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158477 5/28/2014 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

 7.58R30 DL 6PK4021444

 10.83PENCILPULL4023467

 23.873.5MILBLKSHT4025877

 15.16GAS SPOUTS4164240

 23.64PHOTO CELL/TEKS ROOFING4563626

 59.1450FT HDNK FL/ADAPT/MG LFA 1-PK5040355

 10.743PKAPGLVS5563546

 11.85BUCH 6N1SD/WASHERS5582310

 19.7911/2BNTWSHSJ/NS10/TAILPIECE573928

 32.5911NATTIE1006022810

 129.51BONNIE 5IN/VEG PLEAT 5IN/TRIOX/HERB/VINE6161968

 30.23BUCKET7025137

 182.44PPI/EHGDPBSG/PRFDSFTYYWGA/MINIROLTRY7041024

 47.75STRETCH WRAP8020521

 129.79FIXTURES8541850

 114.66DRYWALL/IMPACT9020067

 28.20REPL LAMP9020174

Total :  1,225.57

 158478 5/28/2014 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 704923 COFFEE SUPPLIES  93.22

Total :  93.22

 158479 5/28/2014 0003854  ICICLE INN 8750 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/BAER  184.92

 462.30HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/KLASZKY8752

Total :  647.22

 158480 5/28/2014 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 051214 MAY 2014/DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTIO 166.67

Total :  166.67

 158481 5/28/2014 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 560781-2 RING TERM  33.67

 512.68HEX C/S561761-1

Total :  546.35

 158482 5/28/2014 0005884  ISLAND COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES 1ST QTR 2014 1ST QTR 2014/EXCISE PROFIT TAX  135.32

Total :  135.32

7Page:

23



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158483 5/28/2014 0004410  ISLAND COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH 043014 2014 POOL/SPA PERMIT RENEWAL  286.00

Total :  286.00

 158484 5/28/2014 0006362  KBA, INC 3001669 PROF SVC/NORTH RESERVOIR  1,150.09

Total :  1,150.09

 158485 5/28/2014 0000476  KERR, JACK 05-14 MAY 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

Total :  1,400.00

 158486 5/28/2014 0005996  LEONARDI, CONNIE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  90.00

 52.00TRAVEL REFUND1

Total :  142.00

 158487 5/28/2014 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00061115 ELBOW  60.06

 550.30HOSE0061049

Total :  610.36

 158488 5/28/2014 0002448  LOPER, MARGARET B 1 TRAVEL REFUND  29.00

Total :  29.00

 158489 5/28/2014 0002449  LUNDGREN, KATHLEEN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  52.00

Total :  52.00

 158490 5/28/2014 0003508  MARTENSEN, SANDY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  22.00

Total :  22.00

 158491 5/28/2014 0005929  MAXWELL MEDALS & AWARDS 3103375-IN MEDAL  88.70

Total :  88.70

 158492 5/28/2014 0002291  MCYOUNG, MARY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  100.00

Total :  100.00

 158493 5/28/2014 0000558  MERRILL, RAY TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  127.00

Total :  127.00

 158494 5/28/2014 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 051714 MAY 2014/HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

8Page:

24



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158495 5/28/2014 0000565  MICROFLEX, INC 00021732 ONLINE SERVICE FEE  1,200.00

Total :  1,200.00

 158496 5/28/2014 0003369  MICRON CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP 250187924 PIN  32.99

Total :  32.99

 158497 5/28/2014 0005266  MOFFATT & NICHOL ENGINEERS 69046 PROF SVC/STORMWATER OUTFALL  47,165.00

 9,298.00PROF SVC/STORMWATER OUTFALL69244

Total :  56,463.00

 158498 5/28/2014 0005445  MONTOYA, MATTHEW J 105 MAY 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE  5,500.00

Total :  5,500.00

 158499 5/28/2014 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES 00522610_SNV FACE SEALS  230.73

 271.65FACE SEALS00522925_SNV

Total :  502.38

 158500 5/28/2014 0000612  NELSON PETROLEUM 0516127-IN FUEL  130.50

 1,327.85FUEL0517565-IN

 272.66FUEL0518865-IN

Total :  1,731.01

 158501 5/28/2014 0006142  NIENHUIS, JOAN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  52.00

Total :  52.00

 158502 5/28/2014 0003946  OAC SERVICES, INC 127939 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR WWT  6,469.63

Total :  6,469.63

 158503 5/28/2014 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 238560 FASTENERS  11.54

 5.97ELECT TAPE/TIE WRAPS239258

 5.44TIE WRAP239261

 3.45HARDWARE/FASTENERS239266

 5.42BATTERY239398

 19.54COARSE THREADED STL RD239413

 7.04BUSHING/NIPPLE239425

 6.51BONDING239444

 27.12GRND WHL/BACKING PLATE239465

 6.84WASHER/SCREWS239475

9Page:

25



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158503 5/28/2014 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 37.99CAR WASH239577

 8.69NOZZLE239595

 0.91FASTENERS239651

 8.14CEMENT239662

 4.24FASTENERS239667

 33.69SALT239730

 5.42DUCT TAPE239751

 78.22RSTP/ROLLER COVER239783

 14.11PESTICIDE/SLIDE ACTION BLT239798

 79.32OIL/AUTOCUT239846

 22.79METAL239852

 8.69SPRAY239895

Total :  401.08

 158504 5/28/2014 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-198179 CORE -54.35

 54.35CORE001-201422

 10.97BLADE/ELECTRICAL001-201979

 8.78FUSES/AMP001-202069

 14.26RELAY001-202179

 56.70DOUBLE PLATINUM001-202382

 4.08CHROME001-202384

 25.98DSC PAD ST001-202426

 211.97ALTERNATOR001-202926

 36.71COOL TAPE001-202944

 60.34FILTERS001-203003

-10.87CORE001-203017

 8.82FILTERS001-203047

 4.40FILTERS001-203176

Total :  432.14

 158505 5/28/2014 0006743  OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE 500740 OPEN HOUSE SUPPLIES  50.00

Total :  50.00

 158506 5/28/2014 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 708172739001 FLASH DRIVE  531.83

 243.43TONER708396434001

 70.38PAPER708577042001

10Page:

26



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158506 5/28/2014 (Continued)0003007  OFFICE DEPOT

 81.23INDEX708733524001

 59.76INDEX708734331001

Total :  986.63

 158507 5/28/2014 0000665  OFFICEMAX, INC 974753 MNGRS  173.91

Total :  173.91

 158508 5/28/2014 0000666  OGDEN MURPHY WALLACE 712064 PROV SVC/SWINOMISH INDIAN TRIBAL COMMUNI 15,095.57

 409.50PROF SVC/TRAVELERS V PERTEET712065

Total :  15,505.07

 158509 5/28/2014 0007480  OPENGOV, INC 1136 OPENGOV WEB APPLICATION  9,500.00

Total :  9,500.00

 158510 5/28/2014 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0076752 TIRES  334.76

Total :  334.76

 158511 5/28/2014 0007171  PEABODY, CHRISTOPHER TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  44.65

Total :  44.65

 158512 5/28/2014 0004041  PETERSCHMIDT, ARNOLD TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  27.62

Total :  27.62

 158513 5/28/2014 0000721  PLACE, GEORGE EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  85.00

Total :  85.00

 158514 5/28/2014 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  1,470.00

Total :  1,470.00

 158515 5/28/2014 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER 225132 SHIPPING  7.27

 9.94SHIPPING225388

Total :  17.21

 158516 5/28/2014 0000730  POWELL, JANIS 1 DRIVING SERVICES  108.00

 102.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  210.00

11Page:

27



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158517 5/28/2014 0007479  PRECISION SAW & KNIFE 679569 SHARPENING  61.04

Total :  61.04

 158518 5/28/2014 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 ELECTRICITY/DISPLT  2,830.32

 13.97ELECTRICITY/WINDMILL200000919684

 2,095.07ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 20.60ELECTRICITY/E BATH200001097589

 13.07ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE200001884218

 148.05ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 68.68ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20200002036719

 19.10ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT200002037261

 87.19ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037501

 10.16ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 11.13ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 151.67ELECTRICITY/CMFTST200002723381

 18.32ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 103.85ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RESTRM200003459654

 14.71ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE200004342099

 117.38ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD200004562878

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.16ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 36.37ELECTRICITY/WKITCH200005461666

 12.71ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 147.91ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.16ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 16.51ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 33.74ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 100.41ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 23.86ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE200010499446

 70.84ELECTRICITY/651 NE BAYSHORE DR200010530240

 12.21ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST PARK200010530802

 189.91ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY CAB200010531024

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP200010531172

 127.10ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR200010531354

 86.71ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

12Page:

28



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158518 5/28/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 97.30ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR BALLPK200010699706

 764.81ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 19.43ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 29.05ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.16ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 1,096.10ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 2,959.44ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 16.43ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 2,274.19ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 1,633.47ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD200013734963

 121.96ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY200013968405

 56.34ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 813.12ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.22ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 108.35ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321

 64.82ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR200015685833

 429.90ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD200017255619

 714.02ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 88.64ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347

 72.15ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD200017653656

 172.68ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR200017654415

 15.33ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE200017853025

 1,404.49ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

 44.80ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY200019043344

 40.81ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR200019500517

 17.69ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 609.21ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 10.16ELECTRICITY/KITEST200020308330

 32.08ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST200022441113

 26.07ELECTRICITY/TRAILER PK S END200022988147

 31.01ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 50.07ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD200023360569

 31.14ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST200024715845

 210.98ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 142.02ELECTRICITY/ANIMAL SHELTER220000598098

 43.94ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB RD220002244337

13Page:

29



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158518 5/28/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 403.01ELECTRICITY/321 SE PIONEER WAY #101220003651407

 2.54LATE CHARGES400000587602

Total :  21,312.27

 158519 5/28/2014 0000754  RAINBOW METALS 11160 PLAQUE  158.57

Total :  158.57

 158520 5/28/2014 0001463  RASMUSSEN, SHIRLEY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  284.25

Total :  284.25

 158521 5/28/2014 0002508  RINEY PRODUCTION SERVICES 10-1248 TAPING SERVICES  4,116.70

Total :  4,116.70

 158522 5/28/2014 0007386  RMT Q86168 O RINGS  86.50

 81.47BREAKERQ86305

 369.36TEESQ86307

Total :  537.33

 158523 5/28/2014 0000775  ROSEN, CATHERINE TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  88.50

Total :  88.50

 158524 5/28/2014 0000781  SAFEWAY 431158 GROCERIES  21.11

 52.29GROCERIES724681

 76.07GROCERIES801455

Total :  149.47

 158525 5/28/2014 0007481  SERIO-INDUSTRIES 16290 HARDWARE  73.84

Total :  73.84

 158526 5/28/2014 0000816  SHELL FLEET PLUS 0000000065163545405 FUEL  38.09

Total :  38.09

 158527 5/28/2014 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9403603827 SHREDDING  85.80

Total :  85.80

 158528 5/28/2014 0005444  SIERRA, GEORGINA D 052314 MAY 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE  2,500.00

14Page:

30



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,500.00 158528 5/28/2014 0005444 0005444  SIERRA, GEORGINA D

 158529 5/28/2014 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-284701 KIT SPARES  27.14

 249.89LED EXT MDL KIT14-284705

 397.19ROTARY FLUID PUMP14-285388

-48.09SPARES KIT14-285976

 104.93COUPLER14-286213

Total :  731.06

 158530 5/28/2014 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 404371 STRAW/SEED  161.82

 28.25FENCE POST458684

 217.38ROUNDUP484925

 83.68CLEANER/HERBICIDE484979

 42.36SEED/STRAW487222

Total :  533.49

 158531 5/28/2014 0007425  SOLICITBID, LLC 041714-11 SHALLOW PIT TRUCK SCALE  75.00

Total :  75.00

 158532 5/28/2014 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 1016347 CLEAN WATER FACILITY  137.06

 224.28WINDJAMMER PARK1034649

 112.14CALL FOR BIDS1034655

Total :  473.48

 158533 5/28/2014 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3230349068 MARKERS  13.53

 104.59TONER3230349069

 170.53SOAP3230349070

 40.59SHIPPNIG LABELS3231080704

 37.79CHAIRMAT3231080705

 86.94ADAPTER3231080707

 32.60LABELS3231080708

Total :  486.57

 158534 5/28/2014 0007101  STETZ, SHELDON 051314 UNCLAIMED UTILITY REFUND  99.51

Total :  99.51

 158535 5/28/2014 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  132.00

 168.00DRIVING SERVICES1

15Page:

31



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158535 5/28/2014 (Continued)0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L

 126.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  426.00

 158536 5/28/2014 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1016470 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79

Total :  59.79

 158537 5/28/2014 0000897  TMG SERVICES, INC 0036403-IN FLUORIDE PROBE  224.38

Total :  224.38

 158538 5/28/2014 0000986  TRANSPORTATION, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OFRE41JA8351L002 PROF SVC/WATER MAIN  30.71

Total :  30.71

 158539 5/28/2014 0004518  TRIANGLE CHARTER SERVICE, LLC 5040 TRANSPORTAION  750.00

Total :  750.00

 158540 5/28/2014 0004847  TULL, NANCY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  90.00

 52.00TRAVEL REFUND1

Total :  142.00

 158541 5/28/2014 0000913  TYHUIS, RICHARD EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  85.00

Total :  85.00

 158542 5/28/2014 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 951762460 SHIPPING  14.71

Total :  14.71

 158543 5/28/2014 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W184 SHIPPING  11.92

 5.76SHIPPING0000A0182W194

Total :  17.68

 158544 5/28/2014 0004165  UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST, INC 119525297-001 RAISE LOWER SWITCH  305.65

Total :  305.65

 158545 5/28/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485591000611990 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  4,977.16

Total :  4,977.16

 158546 5/28/2014 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 341743 GASKET  43.27

16Page:

32



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  43.27 158546 5/28/2014 0000926 0000926  USABLUEBOOK

 158547 5/28/2014 0000937  VALLEY FREIGHTLINER, INC 2241290077 ELEC UP7A  198.83

Total :  198.83

 158548 5/28/2014 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9724896269 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  4,455.09

Total :  4,455.09

 158549 5/28/2014 0007470  WAGNER, JUDITH 1 TRAVEL REFUND  90.00

Total :  90.00

 158550 5/28/2014 0000973  WALDRON CONSTRUCTION 052014 WATER/SEWER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 4,761.00

Total :  4,761.00

 158551 5/28/2014 0001639  WASHINGTON CITIES INSURANCE OH-211 TRAINING  1,200.00

Total :  1,200.00

 158552 5/28/2014 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I14008074 BACKGROUND CHECKS  775.50

Total :  775.50

 158553 5/28/2014 0007094  WESTERN EQUIPMENT DIST, INC 750515.2 BUSHING  105.06

Total :  105.06

 158554 5/28/2014 0001007  WHIDBEY CLEANERS 253371 GARMENTS  103.03

 89.68EMBROIDERY256299

Total :  192.71

 158555 5/28/2014 0003418  WHIDBEY ISLAND EMS COUNCIL 052314 EMT TRAINING  2,600.00

Total :  2,600.00

 158556 5/28/2014 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 46919 BUSINESS CARDS/MAZZOLI  55.71

 197.29ENVELOPES46924

 448.26LETTERHEAD46925

 395.67LETTERHEAD46926

Total :  1,096.93

 158557 5/28/2014 0004185  WHIDBEY SEATAC SHUTTLE 805 TRANSPORTATION  1,500.00

17Page:

33



05/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 3:52:52PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,500.00 158557 5/28/2014 0004185 0004185  WHIDBEY SEATAC SHUTTLE

 158558 5/28/2014 0006906  WILDER, VALERIE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  104.00

Total :  104.00

 158559 5/28/2014 0002819  WILLINGHAM, HILARY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  20.00

Total :  20.00

 158560 5/28/2014 0007477  WOUTAT, DONALD 7008 MOORAGE REFUND  48.30

Total :  48.30

Bank total :  395,219.42 139 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 395,219.42Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 139

18Page:

34



35



RESOLUTION NO.  14-21 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
ESTABLISHING AN INVESTMENT POLICY. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor wishes to formally establish an Investment Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor wishes the Investment Policy be authorized by resolution 
of City Council; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR THAT: 

 
Section 1.  The City Council adopts the newly established Investment Policy as set forth in 
Attachment “A” to this Resolution. 
 
Section 2.  This Resolution, including the policy as shown in Attachment “A” shall become 
effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 
 
 
PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 3rd day of June, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
        

_______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk    Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 
 
Introduction:  
Adopted:    
Published:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

36



ATTACHMENT A 

City of Oak Harbor 

 
 

Finance Department 

Policy & Procedure Manual 

Description: 

Investment Policy 
No. 

01 
  
Revision Date: 

May 29, 2014 

No. 
01 

 
 
1. Policy Statement 
 
It is the policy of the City of Oak Harbor to invest public funds in a manner which will provide 
maximum security with the highest investment return possible, while meeting the daily cash 
flow demands of the City and conforming to all Washington statutes governing the investment 
of public funds. 
 
2.  Scope 
 
This investment policy applies to all financial assets of City of Oak Harbor.  These funds are 
accounted for in City of Oak Harbor’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which includes 
the following: 
  

• General Fund 
• Special Revenue Funds 
• Debt Service Funds 
• Capital Project Funds 
• Enterprise Funds 
• Internal Service Funds 
• Trust and Agency Funds 
• Any new fund/component unit created by the City Council, unless specifically 

exempted 
 

3. Prudence 
 
Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their 
own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their 
capital as well as the probable income to be derived.   
 
The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent person” 
and/or “prudent investor” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall 

Page 2 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

37



portfolio.  Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and the 
investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for 
an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from 
expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control 
adverse developments. 
 
In determining whether an investment official has exercised prudence with respect to an 
investment decision, the determination shall be made taking into consideration the 
investment of all funds over which the official had responsibility rather than a consideration 
as to the prudence of a single investment, a, whether the investment decision was consistent 
with the written policy of the entity. 
 
4. Objective 
 
The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City of Oak Harbor‘s investment activities shall 
be: 
 

• Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  
Investments of the City of Oak Harbor shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to 
ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.  To attain this objective, 
diversification is required on order that potential losses on individual securities do not 
exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfolio. 

 
• Liquidity: The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City of 

Oak Harbor to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably 
anticipated.  This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that securities mature 
concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands (static liquidity).  
Furthermore, since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, the portfolio 
should consist largely of securities with active secondary or resale markets (dynamic 
liquidity). 

 
• Return on Investments: The City of Oak Harbor’s investment portfolio shall be 

designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return through budgetary 
and economic cycles, taking into account the City’s investment risk constraints and 
liquidity needs.  Return on investment is of secondary importance compared to the 
safety and liquidity objectives described above.  The core of investment is limited to 
relatively low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair rate of return relative to 
the risk being assumed.  Securities shall generally be held until maturity with the 
following exceptions: 

 
• A security with declining credit may be sold early to minimize the loss of principal. 
• A security swap would improve the quality, yield, or target duration of the 

portfolio. 
• Liquidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be sold early. 

 

Page 3 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

38



 
5. Delegation of Authority 
 
Management responsibility for the investment program is assigned to the Finance Director 
per OHMC 2.07.030.  The Finance Director may delegate authority for the day-to-day 
administration, investing tracking, and reporting of the investment program to the Treasury 
Manager.   
 
The Finance Director may also appoint an investment officer whose responsibilities will 
include initiating daily transactions in the investment portfolio based on liquidity and cash 
flow requirements of the city.  In addition, the Finance Director shall establish written 
procedures for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment 
policy.   
 
Procedures should include reference to, if applicable: safekeeping, master repurchase 
agreements, wire transfer agreements, custody agreements and investment related banking 
services contracts.  Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to persons 
responsible for investment transactions.   
 
No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of 
this policy without the express written consent of the Finance Director. The Finance Director 
shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to 
regulate the activities of subordinate officials. 
 
6.  Investment Committee 
 
The City of Oak Harbor shall establish an Investment Committee to act as an oversight body to 
the investment decisions of the Finance Director.  The Investment Committee shall be 
comprised of two City Council members, the City Administrator, the Finance Director, and 
other interested stakeholders.  The two City Council members and other interested 
stakeholders shall be appointed by the Mayor. 
 
7. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 
 
Investment officials will recognize that the investment portfolio is subject to public review 
and evaluation.  The overall program will be designed and managed with a degree of 
professionalism that is worth of the public trust. 
 
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal 
business activity that could conflict with the proper execution of the investment program, or 
which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.  Employees and 
investment officials shall disclose to the Mayor or City Administrator any material financial 
interests in financial institutions that conduct business within this jurisdiction, and they shall 
further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 
performance of City of Oak Harbor’s portfolio.  Employees and officers shall subordinate their 

Page 4 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

39



personal investment transactions to those of City of Oak Harbor, particularly with regard to 
the timing of purchases and sales. 
8. Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions 
 
Selection of a primary bank for the City of Oak Harbor for general banking services will be 
made by the Finance Director, per Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.02. 
 
The Finance Director will maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide 
investment services.  In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved security 
broker/dealers selected by credit worthiness that are authorized to provide investment 
services in the State of Washington.   
 
Authorized broker/dealers and financial institutions will be limited to those that meet one or 
more of the following: 
 

• Financial institutions approved by the Washington Public Deposit Protection 
Commission (RCW 39.58); or, 
 

• Primary dealers or regional dealers that qualify under SEC Rule 15C3-1 (uniform net 
capital rule); or, 
 

• Non-primary dealers qualified under U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 
15C3-1, the Uniform Net Capital Rule, and a certified member of the National 
Association of Securities Dealers. 

 
As required by law (RCW 39.58), certificates of deposit will be purchased only from those 
institutions approved by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC) as 
eligible for deposit of public funds.  The Finance Director will annually adopt the eligibility list 
provided by the PDPC as the approved depositary list. 
 
The maximum amount placed with any one depositary will not exceed the net worth of the 
institution as determined by the PDPC. 
 
Qualified broker/dealers and financial institution will be reviewed and selected by the Finance 
Director on a routine basis.  All broker/dealers and financial institutions who desire to do 
business with the City of Oak Harbor must provide the Finance Director with the following: 
 

• Annual audited financial statements.  
• Proof of Financial Industry Regulation Authority (FINRA) certification. 
• Proof of registration with the State of Washington. 
• A completed Broker/Dealer questionnaire and a certification of having read the City of 
Oak Harbor’s Investment Policy. 

 
The Finance Director will conduct an annual review of the financial condition of the firms.  A 
current audited financial statement is required to be on file for each financial institution and 

Page 5 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

40



broker/dealer with whom the City invests. 
  
The Finance Director is authorized to remove any Broker/Dealer, without approval by the 
investment committee, for recommending investments outside of the scope of the City’s 
investment policy or the laws and regulations pertaining to municipal investments.  Upon 
removal of a Broker/Dealer, the Director of Finance shall provide the members of the 
investment Committee and the Mayor a written report as to the reason of the removal.  
Broker/Dealers removed by the Finance Director may appeal his decision by forwarding a 
written appeal to the City Administrator. 
 
 
9. Authorized and Suitable Investments 
 
From the governing body perspective, special care must be taken to ensure that the list of 
instruments includes only those allowed by law and those that local investment managers are 
trained and competent to handle. 
 
The City of Oak Harbor is empowered by statute to invest in securities and investments 
authorized by state statute as defined in RCW's 39.58 and 39.59.  Authorized investments 
include: 
 

• U.S. Treasury Obligations. 
 

• Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit of financial institutions which are qualified 
public depositories as defined by RCW 39.58.010(2) and in accordance with the 
restrictions therein. 

 
• U.S. Government Agency obligations and U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises 

(GSE’s) which may include, but are not limited to the following:  Federal Home Loan 
Bank (FHLB), Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), Government National Mortgage 
Association (GNMA), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), and Federal 
National Mortgage Association (FNMA), Student Loan Marketing Corporation (SLMA). 

 
•  Bankers' Acceptances (BA’s) purchased through State of Washington Financial 

Institutions and authorized broker/dealers.  Banker’s Acceptances shall not be longer 
than six months duration.  Investments in Banker’s Acceptances must be in the top 30 
banks in the United States, including all banks in the State of Washington as 
authorized by the Public Deposit Protection Commission.  Further, within these 
limitations, investments may be made only in those banks whose other negotiable 
obligations are rated at least A-1, P-1, or F-1 (at the time of purchase) by at least two 
or more internationally recognized rating agencies such as Moody’s or Standard and 
Poors. 

 

Page 6 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

41



• Bonds of the State of Washington and any local government in the State of 
Washington which have, at the time of investment, one of the three highest credit 
ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency. 

 
• General obligation bonds of a state other than the State of Washington and general 

obligation bonds of a local government of a state other than the State of Washington, 
which bonds have at the time of investment one of the three highest credit ratings of 
a nationally recognized rating agency. 

 
• Repurchase agreements provided that a signed Master Repurchase Agreement shall 

be on file in the City of Oak Harbor’s Finance Office for all financial institution that 
enter into a repurchase agreement with the City.  All repurchase agreements will be 
collateralized at a minimum of 102% of market value of principal and interest.  The 
only eligible collateral for repurchase agreement will be direct obligations of the U.S. 
Treasury, U.S. Government Agency and/or U.S. Government instrumentality 
obligations.  All obligations will be held in third party safekeeping.  Third party 
safekeeping agreements must be entered into with a signed agreement between the 
safekeeping financial institution and the City of Oak Harbor Finance Director.  All 
securities in a repurchase agreement shall be priced daily to reflect current market 
conditions for both principal and accrued interest.  Securities shall be purchased from 
either primary dealers or from institutions that are members of the Washington Public 
Depository.  Credit worthiness of the institution will also be considered. 

 
A signed master repurchase agreement in conformance with the Public Securities 
Association (PSA) model agreement and supplemented with the Finance Director’s 
policy on repurchase agreements must be executed prior to entering into a 
repurchase agreement transaction. 

 
• Collateral will always be held by an independent third party with whom City of Oak 

Harbor has a current custodial agreement.  A clearly marked evidence of ownership 
must be supplied to City of Oak Harbor and retained.  The right of substitution is 
granted only upon approval of City of Oak Harbor.   

 
 

• Washington State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).  The Finance Director will 
keep on file the most recent LGIP Investment Policy and operations manual.  This 
policy will be assessed for safety of funds on deposit with the LGIP and risks associated 
with investment strategies.  In addition, the LGIP will complete a questionnaire for the 
Finance Director which will include the following:  

 
• A description of eligible securities. 
• How interest and fees are calculated. 
• How gains and losses are calculated. 
• A description of how the securities are safeguarded. 
• How often the securities are priced. 

Page 7 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

42



• How often the program is audited. 
• Deposit and withdrawal restrictions. 
• Information on how bond proceeds are accounted for in the LGIP. 

 
• Commercial Paper purchased in the secondary market and complying with the State 

Investment Board requirements.  These requirements include commercial paper rated 
at least A-1, P-1, or F-1 (at the time of purchase) by at least two (2) nationally 
recognized agencies such as Moody’s and Standard and Poors and have a maturity not 
exceeding 180 days.  Maturities in excess of 100 days must also have a long-term 
rating of Aa or better by at least one recognized rating agency. 

• Mutual funds used specifically for debt issues related to arbitrage. 
• Other investments authorized by law. 

 
 
10. Collateralization: 
 
Repurchase agreements: 

• The collateral for repurchase agreements shall be U.S. Treasury or Agency securities 
with a term of maturity not to exceed the maximum maturity allowed by the investment 
policy. 
• Mortgage-backed securities of any maturity will not be accepted as collateral. 
• In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, the 
collateralization level will be at 102% of market value of principal and accrued interest. 
• Collateral to be delivered to and held by the trust department of the bank with whom 
the Finance Director is currently using as the City’s safekeeping custodian.   
• At a minimum, the value of the securities must be marked to market on a weekly basis.  
Prevailing market conditions may dictate more frequent repricing at the discretion of the 
Finance Director. 
 

11. Diversification: 
 
It is the policy of the City of Oak Harbor to diversify its investment portfolio.  To eliminate the 
risk of loss resulting from the over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity, issuer, or 
class of securities, all cash and cash equivalent assets in all funds shall be diversified by 
maturity, issuer, and by class of security.  Diversification strategies shall be determined and 
revised periodically by the Finance Director for all funds.  IN establishing specific 
diversification strategies, the following constraints shall apply: 
 

Type of Security Maximum Holdings 
Certificates of Deposit 40% of Portfolio 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 100% of Portfolio 
Federal Agency Securities 90% of Portfolio 
Bankers Acceptances 25% of Portfolio 
Bonds of the State of Washington or any 
local government in the State of 

 
20% of Portfolio 

Page 8 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

43



Washington 10% per Issuer 
Bonds of other states or local governments 
of a state other than the State of 
Washington 

15% of Portfolio 
10% per Issuer 

Municipal Investment Accounts 40% of Portfolio 
Repurchase Agreements 40% of Portfolio 

10% per Dealer 
Washington State Local Government 
Investment Pool 

100% of Portfolio 

Commercial Paper 10% of Portfolio 
Mutual Funds Arbitrage Related Only 

 
12. Sale of Portfolio 
 
Any major changes in the Investment Strategy including the liquidation of the portfolio shall 
require a majority vote by the City Council. 
 
 
13. Safekeeping and Custody: 
 

•  Delivery vs. Payment - All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase 
agreements, entered into by the City of Oak Harbor will be conducted on a delivery-
versus-payment (DVP) basis and will be evidenced by safekeeping receipts to ensure 
that securities are deposited with a third party custodian prior to the release of funds. 

 
• Safekeeping - Securities will be held by an independent third party custodian 

designated by the Finance Director. 
 

• CD’s - Certificates of Deposit in the City's name will be delivered to and held in the 
Finance Department. 

 
14. Maturities 
 
To the extent possible and to preclude the sales of securities that could result in a loss, the 
City of Oak Harbor will attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash flow 
requirements.  Because of inherent difficulties in accurately forecasting cash flow 
requirements, a portion of the portfolio should be continuously invested in readily available 
funds such as the Washington State Local Government Investment Pool or money market 
funds to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing obligations.  To this 
extent, 20% of the portfolio, at the time of investment, will be comprised of investments 
maturing within one year. 
 
Unless matched to a specific cash flow or restricted by state guidelines, the City will directly 
invest remaining funds in authorized securities not to exceed five years in maturity except 
when compatible with a specific fund’s investment needs.  For example, reserve funds may be 

Page 9 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

44



invested in securities exceeding five years if the maturity of such investments is made to 
coincide as nearly as practical with the expected use of the funds. 
 
To ensure additional liquidity and to provide for ongoing market opportunity the weighted 
average maturity and modified duration of the overall portfolio shall not exceed two years 
without the prior written approval of the Finance Director.  Additional, more restrictive 
guidelines may be adopted at the discretion of the Finance Director. 
 
Within confines of the diversification limits, the following investment decision amount and 
maturity limits are established: 
 
Maturity   Individual Investment Size Authorization Required 
Overnight collateral  Unlimited       Finance Director 
 
Less than one year  Up to $2,000,000 par value     Finance Director 
 
More Than One Year 
Less Than Three years Up to $2,000,000 par value Finance Director 
 
More than Three Years 
Less Than Five Years  Up to $2,000,000 par value Finance Director 

& Investment Committee 
15. Internal Control 
 
The investment officer is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 
structure designed to ensure that the assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse.  The 
Finance Director shall establish an annual process of independent review by an external 
auditor.  This review will provide internal control by assuring compliance with policies and 
procedures. The internal controls shall address the following points: 
 

• Control or collusion. 
• Separation of transaction authority from accounting and recordkeeping. 
• Custodial Safekeeping. 
• Avoidance of physical delivery securities. 
• Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members. 
• Written confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers. 
• Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third-party 

custodian. 
 
16. Performance Standards 
 
The investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified within 
this policy.  The investment portfolio will be designed to obtain an average rate of return 
during budgetary and economic cycles, consistent with the investment objectives and cash 
flow needs.  A series of appropriate benchmarks shall be established against which 

Page 10 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

45



performance shall be compared on a regular basis.  The benchmarks will be reflective of the 
actual securities being purchased and the risks undertaken.  The benchmarks will have a 
similarly weighted average maturity as the portfolio.   
 
Accordingly, the City of Oak Harbor’s investment portfolio will be designed to obtain an 
average rate of return which meets or exceed the six month Treasury, the average Fed Funds 
rate, and the annual rate paid by the Washington State Local Government Investment Pool.   
 
17. Procedures 
 
Day-today procedures concerning investment management and accounting are outside the 
scope of this policy.  As deemed necessary, the Finance Director will establish written 
procedures for the operation of the investment program consistent with this policy. 
 
18. Reporting: 
 
The Finance Director shall provide the Investment Committee quarterly investment reports 
which provide an accurate and meaningful summary of the current position of the portfolio 
for the City of Oak Harbor.  The Finance Director shall report to the Investment Committee 
the current investment strategy being followed and recent economic conditions and market 
developments which have a bearing on this strategy.  This report will be prepared in a manner 
which will allow the Investment Committee to ascertain whether investment activities during 
the reporting period have conformed to the investment policy.  The report will include: 
 

• A listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period by authorized 
investment category or type. 

• Asset allocation of types of securities.  
• Performance of portfolio and its appropriate benchmarks. 

 
The investment report may include other pertinent information as requested. 
 
 
19. Investment Policy Adoption 
 
The City of Oak Harbor's investment policy will be adopted by resolution of the City Council.  
The policy will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Investment Committee with approval 
being made on any modifications.  Upon adoption, the City will submit the Investment Policy 
to the Washington Public Treasurers Association for certification. 

Glossary of Terms 
 
The following is a glossary of key investing terms, many of which appear in the City of Oak 
Harbor Investment Policy: 
 
Agency - A debt security issued by a federal or federally sponsored agency.  Federal agencies 
are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government.  Federally sponsored agencies 

Page 11 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

46



(FSAs) are backed by each particular agency with a market perception that there is an implicit 
government guarantee.  An example of a federal agency is the Government National 
Mortgage Association (GNMA).  An example of an 
FSA is the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA). 
 
Amortization - The systematic reduction of the amount owed on a debt issue through 
periodic payments of principal. 
 
Average Maturity - The average length of time that an issue of serial bonds and/or term 
bonds with a mandatory sinking fund feature is expected to be outstanding. 
 
Bankers' Acceptance (BA) - A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust company.  
The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill, as well as the issuer. 
 
Basis Point - A unit of measurement used in the valuation of fixed-income securities equal to 
1/100 of 1 percent of yield, e.g., "1/4" of 1 percent is equal to 25 basis points. 
 
Bid - The indicated price at which a buyer is willing to purchase a security or commodity. 
 
Bond – A long-term debt security, or IOU, issued by a government or corporation that 
generally pays a stated rate of interest and returns the face value on the maturity date. 
 
Book Value - The value at which a security is carried on the inventory lists or other 
financial records of an investor. The book value may differ significantly from the security's 
current value in the market. 
 
Broker -A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a commission paid by the initiator of 
the transaction or by both sides; he does not position. In the money market, brokers are 
active in markets in which banks buy and sell money and in interdealer markets. 
 
Callable Bond -A bond issue in which all or part of its outstanding principal amount may be 
redeemed before maturity by the issuer under specified conditions. 
 
Call Price - The price at which an issuer may redeem a bond prior to maturity.  The price is 
usually at a slight premium to the bond's original issue price to compensate the holder for 
loss of income and ownership. 
 
Call Risk - The risk to a bondholder that a bond may be redeemed prior to maturity. 
 
Cash Sale/Purchase - A transaction which calls for delivery and payment of securities on the 
same day that the transaction is initiated. 
 
Certificate of Deposit (CD) - A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a 
certificate. Large-denomination CDs are typically negotiable. 
 

Page 12 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

47



Collateral - Securities, evidence of deposit or other property which a borrower pledges to 
secure repayment of a loan.  Also refers to securities pledged by a bank to secure deposits of 
public monies. 
 
Commercial Paper - An unsecured short-term promissory note issued by corporations, with 
maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days. 
 
Convexity - A measure of a bond's price sensitivity to changing interest rates.  A high 
convexity indicates greater sensitivity of a bond's price to interest rate changes. 
 
Coupon Rate - The annual rate of interest received by an investor from the issuer of certain 
types of fixed-income securities (also known as the "interest rate"). 
 
Credit Quality - The measurement of the financial strength of a bond issuer.  This 
measurement helps an investor to understand an issuer's ability to make timely interest 
payments and repay the loan principal upon maturity. Generally, the higher the credit quality 
of a bond issuer, the lower the interest rate paid by the issuer because the risk of default is 
lower.  Credit quality ratings are provided by nationally recognized rating agencies. 
 
Credit Risk - The risk to an investor that an issuer will default in the payment of interest 
and/or principal on a security. 
 
Current Yield (Current Return) - A yield calculation determined by dividing the annual interest 
received on a security by the current market price of that security. 
 
Custodian – An independent third party that holds securities in safekeeping as an agent for 
the City. 
 
Dealer - A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all transactions, buying and 
selling for his own account. 
 
Delivery Versus Payment (DVP) - A type of securities transaction in which the purchaser pays 
for the securities when they are delivered either to the purchaser or his/her custodian. 
 
Depository Bank – A local bank used as the point of deposits for cash receipts. 
 
Derivative Security - Financial instrument created from, or whose value depends upon, one 
or more underlying assets or indexes of asset values. 
 
Discount - The difference between the cost price of security and its value at maturity when 
quoted at lower than face value.  A security selling below original offering price shortly after 
sale is also considered to be at a discount. 
 
Discount Securities - Non-interest bearing money market instruments that are issued at a 
discount and redeemed at maturity for full face value, e.g., U.S. Treasury bills. 

Page 13 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

48



 
Diversification -A process of investing assets among range of security types by sector, 
maturity, and quality rating. 
 
Duration - A measure of the timing of the cash flows, such as the interest payment and 
Principal payment, to be received from a given fixed-income security.  This calculation is 
based on three variables: term to maturity, coupon rate, and yield to maturity.  The duration 
of a security is a useful indicator of its price volatility for given changes in interest rates. 
 
Fair Value - The amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 
 
Federal Credit Agencies -Agencies of the Federal government set up to supply credit to 
various classes of institutions and individuals, e.g., S&Ls, small business firms, students, 
farmers, farm cooperatives, and exporters. 
 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) - A federal agency that insures bank 
deposits, currently up to $250,000 per deposit. 
 
Federal Funds (Fed Funds) - Funds placed in Federal Reserve banks by depository 
institutions in excess of current reserve requirements. These depository institutions may 
lend fed funds to each other overnight or on a longer basis. They may also transfer funds 
among each other on a same-day basis through the Federal Reserve banking system.  Fed 
funds are considered to be immediately available funds. 
 
Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB) - The institutions that regulate and lend to savings 
and loan associations.  The Federal Home Loan Banks play a role analogous to that played by 
the Federal Reserve Banks vis-a-vis member commercial banks. 
 
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or Fannie Mae) - FNMA, like GNMA, was 
chartered under the Federal National Mortgage Association Act in 1938.  FNMA is a federal 
corporation working under the auspices of the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, H.U.D.  It is the largest single provider of residential mortgage funds in the 
United States.  Fannie Mae, as the corporation is called, is a private stockholder-owned 
corporation.  The corporation's purchases include a variety of adjustable mortgages and 
second loans in addition to fixed-rate mortgages.  FNMA's securities are also highly liquid and 
are widely accepted.  FNMA assumes and guarantees that all security holders will receive 
timely payment of principal and interest. 
 
Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) - Consists of seven members of the Federal 
Reserve Board and five of the twelve Federal Reserve Bank Presidents.  The President of the 
New York Federal Reserve Bank is a permanent member while the other Presidents serve on a 
rotating basis.  The Committee periodically meets to set Federal Reserve guidelines regarding 
purchases and sales of Government Securities in the open market as a means of influencing 
the volume of bank credit and money. 

Page 14 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

49



 
Federal Reserve System - The central bank of the United States created by Congress and 
consisting of a seven member Board of Governors in Washington, D.C., 12 regional banks and 
about 5,700 commercial banks that are members of the system. 
 
Fiscal Agency – A financial institution that handles certain bond and coupon redemptions on 
behalf of an investor. 
 
Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or Ginnie Mae) - Securities 
 Guaranteed by GNMA and issued by mortgage bankers, commercial banks, savings and loan 
associations, and other financial institutions. Security holder is protected by the full faith and 
credit of the U.S. Government.  Ginnie Mae securities are backed by FHA, VA, or FMHM 
mortgages.  The term pass-through is often used to describe Ginnie Maes. 
 
Government Securities - An obligation of the U.S. government, backed by the full faith 
and credit of the government. These securities are regarded as the highest quality of 
investment securities available in the U.S. securities market. See "Treasury Bill, Notes, and 
Bonds." 
 
Interest Rate - See "Coupon Rate". 
 
Interest Rate Risk - The risk associated with declines or rises in interest rates which cause an 
investment in a fixed-income security to increase or decrease in value. 
 
Internal Controls -An internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the 
entity are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal control structure is designed to 
provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met.  The concept of reasonable 
assurance recognizes that 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be 
derived; and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management. Internal controls should address the following points: 

 
1. Control of collusion - Collusion is a situation where two or more employees are 
working in conjunction to defraud their employer. 
 
2. Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping – By 
separating the person who authorizes or performs the transaction from the people 
who record or otherwise account for the transaction, a separation of duties is 
achieved. 
 
3. Custodial safekeeping - Securities purchased from any bank or dealer including 
appropriate collateral (as defined by state law) shall be placed with an independent 
third party for custodial safekeeping. 
 
4. Avoidance of physical delivery securities - Book-entry securities are much easier to 
transfer and account for since actual delivery of a document never takes place. 

Page 15 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

50



Delivered securities must be properly safeguarded against loss or destruction.  The 
potential for fraud and loss increases with physically delivered securities. 
 
5. Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members - Subordinate staff 
members must have a clear understanding of their authority and responsibilities to 
avoid improper actions.  Clear delegation of authority also preserves the internal 
control structure that is contingent on the various staff positions and their respective 
responsibilities. 
 
6. Written confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers - Due to 
the potential for error and improprieties arising from telephone and electronic 
transactions, all transactions should be supported by written communications and 
approved by the appropriate person. Written communications may be via fax if on 
letterhead and if the safekeeping institution has a list of authorized signatures. 
 
7. Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third-party 
custodian - The designated official should ensure than an agreement will be entered 
into and will address the following points: controls, security provisions, and 
responsibilities of each party making and receiving wire transfers 

 
Inverted Yield Curve -A chart formation that illustrates long-term securities having lower 
yields than short-term securities.  This configuration usually occurs during periods of high 
inflation coupled with low levels of confidence in the economy and a restrictive 
monetary policy. 
 
 Investment Company Act of 1940 - Federal legislation which sets the standards by which 
investment companies, such as mutual funds, are regulated in the areas of advertising, 
promotion, performance reporting requirements, and securities valuations. 
 
Investment Policy - A concise and clear statement of the objectives and parameters 
formulated by an investor or investment manager for a portfolio of investment securities. 
 
Investment-grade Obligations - An investment instrument suitable for purchase by 
institutional investors under the prudent person rule. Investment-grade is restricted to those 
obligations rated BBB or higher by a rating agency. 
 
Liquidity -A liquid asset is one that can be converted easily and rapidly into cash without 
a substantial loss of value. In the money market, a security is said to be liquid if the spread 
between bid and asked price is narrow and reasonable size can be done at those quotes. 
 
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) - The aggregate of all funds from political 
subdivisions that are placed in the custody of the State Treasurer for investment and 
reinvestment. 
 
Mark to Market – An adjustment in the valuation of a securities portfolio to reflect the 

Page 16 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

51



current market values of the respective securities in the portfolio.  This process is also used to 
ensure that margin accounts are in compliance with maintenance. 
 
Market Risk - The risk that the value of a security will raise or decline as a result of changes in 
market conditions. 
 
Market Value - The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be purchased or 
sold. 
 
Master Repurchase Agreement - A written contract covering all future transactions between 
the parties to repurchase-reverse repurchase agreements that establish each party's rights in 
the transactions.  A master agreement will often specify, among other things, the right of the 
buyer-lender to liquidate the underlying securities in the event of default by the seller-
borrower. 
 
Maturity - The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due 
and payable. 
 
Money Market - The market in which short-term debt instruments (bills, commercial 
paper, bankers' acceptances, etc.) are issued and traded. 
 
Open Market Operations - Purchases and sales of government and certain other securities in 
the open market by the New York Federal Reserve Bank as directed by the FOMC in order to 
influence the volume of money and credit in the economy.  Purchases inject reserves into the 
bank system and stimulate growth of money and credit; sales have the opposite effect.  Open 
market operations are the Federal Reserve's most important and most flexible monetary 
policy tool. 
 
National Association of Securities Dealers (NASO) - A self-regulatory organization (SRO) of 
brokers and dealers in the over-the-counter securities business.  It’s regulatory mandate 
includes authority over firms that distribute mutual fund shares as well as other securities. 
 
Net Asset Value - The market value of one share of an investment company, such as a 
mutual fund. This figure is calculated by totaling a fund's assets which includes securities, 
cash, and any accrued earnings, subtracting this from the fund's liabilities and 
dividing this total by the number of shares outstanding.  This is calculated once a day based 
on the closing price for each security in the fund's portfolio (See below).  (Total 
assets)-(Liabilities)/(Number of shares outstanding). 
 
Nominal Yield - The stated rate of interest that a bond pays its current owner, based on 
par value of the security. It is also known as the "coupon", "coupon rate", or "interest rate". 
 
Offer - An indicated price at which market participants are willing to sell a security or 
commodity.  Also referred to as the "ask price". 
 

Page 17 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

52



Par - Face value or principal value of a bond, typically $1,000 per bond. 
 
Portfolio - Collection of securities held by an investor. 
 
Positive Yield Curve - A chart formation that illustrates short-term securities having lower 
yields than long-term securities. 
 
Premium - The amount by which the price paid for a security exceeds the security's par-value. 
 
Primary Dealer - A group of government securities dealers that submit daily reports of market 
activity and positions and monthly financial statements to the Federal Reserve Bank of New 
York and are subject to its informal oversight.  Primary dealers include Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) registered securities broker-dealers, banks, 
and a few unregulated firms. 
 
Prime Rate - A preferred interest rate charged by commercial banks to their most 
creditworthy customers.  Many interest rates are keyed to this rate. 
 
Principal - The face value or par value of a debt instrument.  Also may refer to the amount of 
capital invested in a given security. 
 
Prudent Person Rule - An investment standard outlining the fiduciary responsibilities of public 
funds-investors-relating-to investment practices. 
 
Qualified Public Depositories - A financial institution which does not claim exemption from 
the payment of any sales or compensating use or ad valorem taxes under the laws of 
this state, which has segregated for the benefit of the commission eligible collateral having a 
value of not less than its maximum liability and which has been approved by the 
Public Deposit Protection Commission to hold public deposits. 
 
Rate of Return - The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current 
market price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or the current income 
return. 
 
Repurchase Agreement (RP or REPO) - A holder of securities sells these securities to an 
investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed date.  The security 
"buyer" in effect lends the "seller'' money for the period of the agreement, and the terms of 
the agreement are structured to compensate him for this.  Dealers use RP extensively to 
finance their positions. Exception: When the Fed is said to be doing RP, it is lending money, 
that it, increasing bank reserves. 
 
Reverse Repurchase Agreement (Reverse Repo) - An agreement of one party to purchase 
securities at a specified price from a second party and a simultaneous agreement by the first 
party to resell the securities at a specified price to the second party on demand or at a 
specified date. 

Page 18 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

53



 
Safekeeping - A service to customers rendered by banks for a fee whereby securities and 
valuables of all types and descriptions are held in the bank's vaults for protection. 
 
Secondary Market - A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding issues following 
the initial distribution. 
 
Securities & Exchange Commission -Agency created by Congress to protect investors in 
securities transactions by administering securities legislation. 
 
Swap - Trading one asset for another. 
 
Term Bond - Bonds comprising a large part or all of a particular issue which come due in a 
single maturity.  The issuer usually agrees to make periodic payments into a sinking fund for 
mandatory redemption of term bonds before maturity. 
 
Total Return - The sum of all investment income plus changes in the capital value of the 
portfolio.  For mutual funds, return on an investment is composed of share price appreciation 
plus any realized dividends or capital gains.  This is calculated by taking the following 
components during a certain time period.  (Price Appreciation) + (Dividends paid) + (Capital 
Gains) = Total Return 
 
Treasury Bills - Short-term U.S. government non-interest bearing debt securities with 
maturities of no longer than one year and issued in minimum denominations of $10,000. 
Auctions of three and six month bills are weekly, while auctions of one-year bills are monthly.  
The yields on these bills are monitored closely in the money markets for signs of interest rate 
trends. 
 
Treasury Bonds -Long-term U.S. government debt securities with maturities of ten years or 
longer and issued in minimum denominations of $1,000.  Currently, the longest outstanding 
maturity for such securities is 30 years. 
 
Treasury Notes - Intermediate U.S. government debt securities with maturities of one to 
10 years and issued in denominations ranging from $1,000 to$1 million or more. 
 
Uniform Net Capital Rule - SEC Rule 15C3-1 outlining capital requirements for broker/dealers. 
 
Volatility - A degree of fluctuation in the price and valuation of securities. 
 
Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) - The average maturity of all the securities that comprise 
a portfolio.  According to SEC rule 2A-7, the WAM for SEC registered money   market mutual 
funds may not exceed 90 days and no one security may have a maturity that exceeds 397 
days. 
 
Yield - The current rate of return on an investment security generally expressed as a 

Page 19 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

54



percentage of the security's current price. 
Yield Curve - A graphic representation that depicts the relationship at a given point in time 
between yields and maturity for bonds that are identical in every way except maturity.  A 
normal yield curve may be alternatively referred to as a positive yield curve. 
 
Yield-to-call (YTC) - The rate of return an investor earns from a bond assuming the bond is 
redeemed (called) prior to its nominal maturity date. 
 
Yield-to-maturity - The rate of return yielded by a debt security held to maturity when both 
interest payments and the investor's potential capital gain or loss are included in the 
calculation of return. 
 
Zero-coupon Securities - Security that is issued at a discount and makes no periodic interest 
payments.  The rate of return consists of a gradual accretion of the principal of the security 
and is payable at par upon maturity. 

 

Page 20 of 20 
Resolution 14-17:  Investment Policy 

55



56



57



58



59



ATTACHMENT E 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 
Planning Commission Recommendation 

60



61



62



63



64



65



ATTACHMENT E 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 
Preliminary Plat Resolution 

66



RESOLUTION NO. 14-15 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF BECKETT LANDING AND 

AUTHORIZING FILING OF CONSTRUCTION PLANS AND PERMITS SUBJECT TO 

CONDITIONS IMPOSED 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning Commission on May 27, 2014, on the 

below described plat and the City Council having approved the same and adopted the Findings of 

Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Record of Decision of the Planning Commission by reference, a 

copy of which is hereto attached. 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do resolve as follows: 

 

Section One. The preliminary plat of Beckett Landing consisting of 22 single-family residential 

lots, one native vegetation tract, one wetland preservation tract, and one stormwater treatment 

tract on 4.90 acres (Island County parcel Number (R13334-277-0660) under City File Number 

PPL-12-00002, a copy of the map which is hereto attached and by reference made a part hereof, 

is hereby approved subject to the conditions contained in the Planning Commission Record of 

Decision being met, or satisfactory assurances are provided to meet the requirements, before 

final plat may be filed. 

 

Section Two. Severability. If any provision of this Resolution or its application to any person or 

circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 

to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

 

Section Three. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect five days after its 

passage and publication as required by law. 

 

 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this _______ day of ______________, 

2014. 

 

      

        CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

        ______________________ 

        Scott Dudley, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________ 

67



ATTACHMENT E 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 

 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

68



Memo 

To: Members of the Planning Commission 

Cc: Steve Powers, Development Services Director 

From: Ethan Spoo, Senior Planner 

Date: 4/9/2014 

Re: Beckett Landing Subdivision – Staff Report 

PURPOSE 

This staff report summarizes the preliminary plat and critical areas applications for the proposed Beckett 
Landing subdivision. This is a Review Process IV, quasi-judicial proceeding intended to have Planning 
Commission review the preliminary plat, accept public comment, and make a recommendation to the City 
Council. As a quasi-judicial proceeding, the hearing is subject to the Appearance of Fairness Doctrine, due 
process, and limitations of open record hearings contained in Chapters RCW 42.36 and 36.70B. 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Developer/Builder: Seattle Pacific Development, LLC 

Location: South of the existing terminus of NW Prow Street, north of the approved Island Place Planned 
Residential Development, west of the existing Paragon Place development and east of the terminus 
of NW Riggings Lane. 

Comprehensive Plan Designation: Medium Density Residential 

Zoning: R-2 Limited Multi-family Residential 

Site Area: 4.90 Acres 

Lots: 22 

Density: 4.49 dwelling units per acre 

Open space provided: 0.41 acres 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The proposal is a 22-lot subdivision on 4.90 acres (see Attachment A, Beckett Landing Preliminary Plat). The 
applicant is seeking preliminary plat approval to subdivide the site and create associated street, sidewalk, 
landscape strip and pedestrian access improvements. If the preliminary plat application is approved, as 
recommended subject to the conditions of approval in Attachment B, the applicant will proceed to the next step 
of the approval process which is the submittal of detailed civil engineering construction drawings. 

Public, residential streets are proposed to serve the development. The project will extend the existing stub of 
NW Prow Street from north to south through the subdivision to provide connections to the Meadowridge 
development to the north and to Phase 2 of the approved Island Place development to the south. In addition, 
the applicant is also proposing to extend NW 7

th
 Avenue to the western property boundary for eventual 

69



2 

 

connection with NW Upsala Drive. In the interim, the applicant will provide a temporary turnaround for 
emergency vehicles on the west side of the site. 

The preliminary design of the site was influenced by the requirement to preserve the portion of the wetland at 
the southwest corner of the site, as well as the need to connect with the existing street system. That wetland is a 
category III wetland (category I are highest quality wetlands and category IV are lowest quality) with standard 
70-foot required wetland buffer extending from the edge of the wetland. State law, as well as the City’s critical 
areas code (Title 20), starts with the premise that wetlands will be preserved. The applicant does not propose 
any alteration to the wetland. The applicant has, however, applied for a critical area permit to reduce the size of 
the required wetland buffer from 70 feet to 40 feet using a combination of incentives available in the code such 
as infiltrating stormwater in the adjacent raingarden, protecting the wetland from light and noise using a fence, 
and replanting the wetland buffer with native trees and shrubs to enhance its quality. The applicant’s wetland 
consultant, Wetland Resources, Inc., provided a Buffer Enhancement Plan (Attachment C) showing how they 
propose to install additional trees and shrubs in the buffer and maintain them for five years until established. 

The applicant is also proposing to preserve 10 percent of the site area as native vegetation, as required by the 
City’s code. These native vegetation areas are located in the rear yards of lots 16-20, in the wetland buffer in 
Tract 998, and in Tract 999 bordering lots 11-15. See Attachment D - Landscape Plans. 

APPLICATIONS UNDER REVIEW 

The application review before the Planning Commission contains the following two applications with further 
discussion of their review criteria below: 

1. Preliminary Plat 
2. Critical Areas Permit 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 
The City’s code (OHMC 21.20.080) and state law establish criteria for the review of preliminary plats under 
OHMC 18.20.260. Planning Commission reviews the preliminary plat and makes a recommendation to the City 
Council after taking comments in a public hearing. Since the ultimate approval authority for preliminary plats is 
the City Council, the review criteria address the City Council, but Planning Commission uses the same criteria to 
make its recommendation. Below, staff are providing responses to the review criteria to assist Planning 
Commission in its decision. Please also see Attachment A, which is the Beckett Landing Preliminary Plat. 

The City Council shall inquire into the public use and interest proposed to be served by the 
establishment of the subdivision and dedication(s). It shall make written findings: 

(a) Whether appropriate provisions have been made for, but not limited to, the public health, 
safety and general welfare, for open spaces, drainage ways, transit stops, potable water 
supplies, sanitary wastes, parks and recreation, playgrounds, schools and schoolgrounds, 
and all other relevant facts, including sidewalks and other planning features that assure 
safe walking conditions for students who walk to and from school. 

Response: 

 Public health, safety and general welfare: The applicant is making provisions to prevent impacts to 
public health in the preliminary plat including providing connections to the pubic sewer and water 
system for each lot, channeling stormwater runoff away from buildings where it could damage 
structures, enhancing the quality of the wetland buffer, and providing safe and efficient streets. The 
applicant is meeting City subdivision requirements as regards to utilities and vehicle/pedestrian 

70



3 

 

circulation which will help ensure the public health, safety and general welfare of residents of the 
subdivision. See Attachment E - Beckett Landing Preliminary Site/Utilities Plans. 

There is a septic drain field and private force main on the subject property serving the Heathrow 
Apartments on the properties to the west and north of the Beckett Landing property. Staff is 
proposing that a condition of approval be applied to the preliminary plat approval requiring that the 
septic drain field and force main be decommissioned in accordance with State and County 
regulations prior to the issuance of building permits. This condition will protect public health by 
ensuring that the drain field is decommissioned in accordance with applicable regulations. The 
septic drain field and private force main are shown on Attachment F. 

 Open spaces: There is no minimum open space requirement for preliminary plats. Nevertheless, 
the applicant is providing passive open space surrounding the wetland to protect it as required by 
state and city code. This open space provision will provide aesthetic and environmental benefits to 
the future residents of the subdivision. Finally, the applicant will pay community and neighborhood 
park impact fees which will be used to construct new parks and park capital facilities within Oak 
Harbor to serve the residents of this subdivision. 

 Drainage Ways: The sole natural drainage on the site is a depressional wetland located at the 
southwest corner of the site. This wetland receives runoff and groundwater from the site during 
times of heavy rainfall. The applicant is proposing to preserve this wetland and enhance the buffer 
around it with additional plantings. In addition, stormwater runoff from the impervious surfaces on 
the site will be channeled to and treated in the onsite raingarden adjacent to the wetland. During 
times of heavy rainfall, the raingarden and overflow spreader may release treated stormwater to 
the wetland. Staff is recommending that a condition of approval be applied requiring that the 
applicant meet all city standards when submitting construction drawings, thereby requiring the 
applicant’s raingarden design to also meet applicable standards. (see Attachment B). Through this 
condition of approval and the proposed preservation of the wetland, the applicant is making 
appropriate provisions for drainage ways onsite and mitigating impacts to the drainage ways from 
proposed development through the treatment of stormwater. 

 Transit stops: Island Transit serves the site within walking distance. There is a transit stop along 
Heller Street near the intersection of Crosby Avenue within ¼ mile served by routes 2, 9, and 10. 
The site, thus, has a high level of transit service. 

 Potable water: as previously mentioned, each lot within the subdivision will be connected to the 
City’s public water system which is a high quality system meeting state quality requirements. The 
City has planned for and can accommodate the growth in population on the subject site to serve it 
with potable water. 

 Sanitary wastes: Each lot within the site will be served by the City’s solid waste service. 

 Parks and recreation, playgrounds: The applicant will pay a neighborhood and community park 
impact fee to help offset the City’s cost of providing park and recreation facilities to the residents of 
the subdivision. 

 Schools and school grounds: The Oak Harbor School District will serve the residents and children 
of the proposed subdivision for educational needs from kindergarten through grade 12. The 
residents of the subdivision will contribute to the funding of the school district through the payment 
of property taxes. 

71



4 

 

 Other relevant facts, sidewalks, safe routes to school: The applicant is proposing to provide 
sidewalks on both sides of the public streets within the subdivision. In addition, the applicant will 
provide a pedestrian/bike connection from the eastern terminus of NW 7

th
 Avenue south toward the 

Island Place development. The pedestrian/bike connection will help create an interconnected, 
multimodal transportation system and shorten walking distances to school facilities. 

(b) Wether the public use and interest will be served by the platting of the subdivision and 
dedications(s) 

Response: The public interest for this property is represented in the City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan, 
which designates this site for medium-density residential development. The applicant is proposing to subdivide 
the site to allow for future construction of single-family residences, which is an allowed use in the R-2 Limited 
Multifamily Residential zone, which implements the City’s comprehensive plan. In addition, the applicant is 
proposing public facilities to serve the lots such as public water, sewer, and roads, which will help ensure that 
the public interest is served through the provision safe, efficient utilities and transportation. 

CRITICAL AREAS PERMIT 
The applicant is proposing to reduce the size of the standard 70-foot wetland buffer for the category III wetland 
onsite to 40 feet using incentives and buffer averaging. To do so, the applicant needs approval of a critical areas 
permit in compliance with OHMC Title 20. The applicant has submitted a Wetland Report (B&A, Inc, dated 
September 23, 2014), an Addendum to Wetland  and Buffer Enhancement Reports (Wetland Resources, Inc. 
dated March 11, 2014), and a Buffer Enhancement Plan (Wetland Resources, Inc. dated March 11, 2014). 
Together, these documents demonstrate compliance with the City’s critical areas code and show how the 
applicant will enhance the wetland buffer with additional native species, maintain these plantings, and monitor 
them for success. Staff is recommending approval of the applicant’s critical areas permit request. 

STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT 
A Mitigated Determination of Non Significance (MDNS) was issued by the Director on April 4, 2014 for the 
project (see Attachment G). The SEPA Official issued a revised SEPA MDNS on April 21, 2014 to add a 
condition addressing the decommissioning and removal of the septic drain field and private force main on the 
property based on comments received during the SEPA MDNS comment period. With the mitigation measures 
described in the determination, all of the anticipated environmental impacts from the proposed subdivision 
project will be mitigated to a level of non-significance. The mitigation measures include complying with the City’s 
critical areas regulation for the wetland, installing City-approved street lights, installing a traffic calming device 
along Prow Street, and decommissioning the private force main and septic drain field in accordance with State 
and Island County regulations. 

CONCLUSION 

Based on the information provided by the Applicant and the review and analysis conducted through the 
application process, staff find the Applicant has sufficiently addressed the requirements of the OHMC relating to 
preliminary plats and critical areas permits. Staff recommends that Planning Commission recommend approval 
of the preliminary plat and critical areas permit subject to the conditions of approval in Attachment B. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Conduct the public hearing 

72



5 

 

2. Forward a recommendation to City Council for approval of the preliminary plat and critical areas permit 
for Beckett Landing subject to the conditions of approval as stated in Attachment B. 

3. Adopt Findings of Fact (see Attachment H). 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Attachment A – Preliminary Plat Map dated March 24, 2014 

2. Attachment B – Conditions of Approval 

3. Attachment C – “Buffer Enhancement Plan”, Sheet 1/1, Wetland Resources, Inc. dated March 25, 
2014. 

4. Attachment D – “Landscape Plans”, Sheets L1-L6, Origin Design Group, dated March 24, 2014. 

5. Attachment E – “Beckett Landing Preliminary Site/Utilities Plans” Sheets C1.0 – C3.0, SDA, dated 
March 24, 2014 

6. Attachment F – Preliminary Plat showing drain field and force main. 

7. Attachment G – SEPA MDNS, dated April 4, 2014 

8. Attachment H – Planning Commission Findings of Fact 

73



ATTACHMENT A

74



ATTACHMENT B 

 

Conditions of Approval 

General 

1. The applicant’s civil engineering construction drawings, landscape plans, land clearing plans, 

grading plans, and final plat drawing shall be in general conformance with the approved preliminary plat 

drawing titled “Preliminary Subdivision of Beckett Landing,” Sheet 1 of 2 dated March 24, 2014. 

2. The applicant’s engineering construction drawings and final plat shall be in general conformance 

with the approved “Buffer Enhancement Plan, Sheet 1/1” by Wetland Resources Inc. dated March 25, 

2014. 

Landscaping 

3. Prior to construction permits being issued, the applicant shall submit detailed landscape and 

irrigation plans in compliance with OHMC 19.46. 

4. The applicant shall post a three year maintenance bond to ensure landscaping completion and a 

minimum plant survival of 80 percent at the end of three years. The type of bond shall be approved by 

the City and must be submitted on forms supplied by the City of Oak Harbor. The approved bond shall 

be posted with the Development Services Department prior to the issuance of a building permit. The 

bond amount shall be 150 percent of a landscaping maintenance bid amount submitted and approved 

by the City. The bid amount must include labor and materials. 

5. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall submit covenants for the commonly owned native 

vegetation areas which describe how these areas are to be preserved and maintained. The maintenance 

provisions shall at a minimum describe cutting, trimming, topping, pollarding procedures and removal of 

non-native vegetation, trash and debris. 

6. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall provide easements for all native vegetation areas 

contained within private lots which describe how these areas are to be preserved and maintained. The 

maintenance provisions shall at a minimum describe cutting, trimming, topping, pollarding procedures 

and removal of non-native vegetation, trash and debris. 

Plat Drawing 

7. Prior to approval of final plat, the applicant is required to submit a copy of all proposed deed 

restrictions and covenants. 

8. The applicant shall include dedication language on the face of the final plat as stated in OHMC 

21.40.040. 

9. Prior to approval of final plat, the applicant shall delete the existing language on the face of the 

plat referencing maintenance by the City of the pedestrian trail easement in Tract 999 and replace it 

with the following language: "The pedestrian bike connection is contained within a publicly accessible 

easement. All improvements and landscaping within the easement shall be maintained by the 

75



ATTACHMENT B 

 

homeowners association. If fencing is installed along the length of the pedestrian bike connection it shall 

be no more than 6 feet high when adjacent to the side yard areas of adjacent lots and no more than 3 

feet high adjacent to front yard areas of adjacent lots. Fencing shall not be installed within 10 feet of the 

terminus of the pedestrian/bike connection at either end." 

10. Prior to approval of civil engineering construction drawings, the applicant shall show bollard 

lighting at both ends of the pedestrian/bike connection for illumination and safety. The bollard lighting 

shall be shown on the construction drawings. 

11. Prior to approval of civil engineering construction drawings, the applicant shall show signs at 

both entrances of the pedestrian connection indicating that it is publicly accessible to bikes and 

pedestrians, but that motorized vehicles are prohibited. Such signs shall be depicted on the construction 

drawings and located in the adjacent landscape strips so as to limit the probability of conflicts with 

pedestrians and bikes. 

Critical Areas 

12. The applicant shall submit wetland and buffer monitoring reports in years 1, 3, and 5 after initial 

planting to the City of Oak Harbor, Development Services Department. These reports must meet the 

recommendations contained in the Addendum to Wetland and Buffer Enhancement Report" and the 

Buffer Enhancement Plan, sheet 1/1 dated March 11, 2014 and submitted to the City on March 25, 

2014. 

13. Prior to approval of final plat, the applicant shall submit a financial guarantee to ensure that the 

buffer enhancement plan is fully implemented and meeting performance standards. Guarantees shall be 

in the form of a surety bond, performance bond, assignment of savings account, or an irrevocable letter 

of credit guaranteed by an acceptable financial institution with terms and conditions acceptable to the 

city. Guarantees shall remain in effect for a minimum of five years until the city determines, in writing 

that the standards bonded for have been met, to ensure that the required mitigation has been fully 

implemented and demonstrated to function. Depletion, failure, or collection of bond funds shall not 

discharge the obligation of an applicant or violator to complete required mitigation, maintenance, 

monitoring, or restoration. 

14. The applicant shall place permanent native growth protection area signs as depicted on the 

Buffer Enhancement Plan by Wetland Resources, dated March 25, 2014. These signs shall be placed in 

three locations around the perimeter of the wetland adjacent to proposed lots 7, proposed lot 8 and 

Tract 997. 

15. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall install a 6-foot high solid fence along the 

proposed buffer perimeter line to block noise and light and provide added protection from humans and 

pets. 

Engineering 

76



ATTACHMENT B 

 

16. Following approval of the Preliminary Plat, construction plans must be submitted to and 

approved by the Engineering Department prior to commencing any construction activities. These plans 

must include all street and frontage improvements (including sidewalk, curb, gutter, paving, traffic 

control, storm drainage, and street illumination), all pedestrian tract improvements (lighting, pathway, 

landscaping), and all existing and proposed utilities including, but not limited  to water, sewer, storm 

drainage (including a site drainage analysis), power, telephone, cable, and gas. All proposed 

improvements must meet the City of Oak Harbor standards for materials and installation practices. 

(Note to applicant: based on the final design of the stormwater treatment and flow control facilities, 

Tract 997 and/or the setbacks from the stormwater facilities may have to increase in size.) 

17 Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall grant an easement to the City of Oak Harbor 

which shall contain the proposed temporary turnaround on the west side of the site. This easement shall 

be granted for the purposes of pedestrian and vehicle travel. No improvements for lots 7 and 8 

including, but not limited to driveways, landscaping, buildings, or fences shall be constructed within the 

easement for the temporary turnaround. The easement shall be reflected on the final plat drawing. 

18. Prior to issuance of construction permits, the applicant shall submit civil engineering 

construction drawings showing the proposed temporary improvements within the temporary 

turnaround area on the west side of the site. The temporary improvements shall include: 

a. Curb, gutter, and sidewalk around the perimeter (circumference) of the temporary 

turnaround. The sidewalk shall be constructed of 6-inch thick concrete for the sidewalk to 

accommodate the loads of an emergency vehicle. 

b. Asphalt pavement section in accordance with City Standards. 

19. No portion of the temporary turnaround on the west side of the site shall be north of the face of 

the curb along the north side of N.W 7th Avenue. 

20. After extinguishment of the turnaround easement, and prior to issuance of a building permit for 

lot 7, the owner of lot 7 shall be responsible for the removal of the asphalt pavement section and 

concrete improvements from the easement area, restoration of appropriate areas to grass, and 

installation of pavement, curb, gutter, sidewalk, planter strip, (including irrigation if present in adjoining 

planter strip) street trees and other necessary appurtenances to complete the road frontage section in 

alignment with a westerly extension of N.W. 7th Avenue. 

22. The applicant must decommission or abandon in-place the existing private septic pressure line 

and drain field on the property in accordance with Island County Health Department and State of 

Washington Department of Health requirements prior to the issuance of construction permits on the 

subject site. 

77



ATTACHMENT C

78



ATTACHMENT D

79



80



81



82



83



84



ATTACHMENT E

85



ATTACHMENT E

86



ATTACHMENT E

87



ATTACHMENT E

88



ATTACHMENT F

89



ATTACHMENT G

90



ATTACHMENT G

91



ATTACHMENT G

92



ATTACHMENT G

93



ATTACHMENT G

94



ATTACHMENT H 
 

 

 BEFORE THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

 STATE OF WASHINGTON 

 

 

In Re Seattle Pacific Development, LLC)    FINDINGS OF FACT 

Preliminary Plat #PPL-12-02  )    CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Beckett Landing   )    RECORD OF DECISION 

 

This matter having come as a public hearing before the Oak Harbor Planning Commission on 

the 27th day of May, 2014 upon application of Seattle Pacific Development, LLC, represented by Ry 

McDuffy, petitioner, appearing in person; Development Services Department of the City of Oak 

Harbor appearing by it's Director; and the City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission being advised 

and having considered the evidence and testimony presented now make the following: 

 

 1.  FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1.1 Jurisdiction herein was obtained by an application from Seattle Pacific Development, 

LLC for Preliminary Plat approval of Beckett Landing, a 22-lot subdivision located south of the 

terminus of NW Prow Street, east of the Paragon Place development, north of the existing/proposed 

Island Place development, and west of the terminus of NW Rigging Lane, more specifically 

encompassing Island County parcel number R13334-277-0660.  

 

1.2 The City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission after due notice of hearing did 

consider the application of Seattle Pacific Development, LLC for the Preliminary Plat of Beckett 

Landing at a regular meeting on May 27, 2014.  The hearing was recorded and a written transcript 

may be prepared therefrom. 

 

1.3 The City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission discussed all matters presented  

thereto and concluded that: 

 

.i An environmental assessment was made of the project in accordance with the 

checklist requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act of 1971.  This proposal has been 

determined to not have a significant impact upon the environment.  An Environmental Impact 

Statement is not required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)C. 

 

.ii A Mitigated Determination of Nonsignificance (MDNS) was issued for the 

proposal on April 4, 2014 in accordance with WAC 197-11-350. A revised MDNS was issued for the 

project on April 21, 2014. 

 

.iii The application as submitted by Seattle Pacific Development, LLC for the 

Beckett Landing preliminary plat meets the requirements of the subdivision ordinance of the City of 

Oak Harbor contained in the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, Title 21 and of RCW 58.17, subject to the 

95



ATTACHMENT H 
 

 

conditions of approval. 

 

.iv The Beckett Landing preliminary plat meets the zoning requirements for the 

district in which it is located and is consistent with the Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 1.4 The Beckett Landing Preliminary Plat  #12-02 has been processed in accordance with 

RCW Title 58, the City of Oak Harbor Municipal Code Titles 18, 19 and 21, the State Environmental 

Policy Act RCW 43.21C and the Open Meetings Act of 1971 RCW 42.30 and the action is in accord 

therewith. 

 

From the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, the Oak Harbor Planning Commission makes the 

following: 

 

 2.  CONCLUSION OF LAW 

 

2.1 The findings of fact as noted in the records of the City of Oak Harbor Development 

Services Department upon which the recommendation for approval of the Preliminary Plat of 

Beckett Landing was made by the City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission are proper and have not 

been reached in an arbitrary or capricious manner nor without due process of law. 

 

 3.  RECORD OF DECISION 

 

3.1 On May 27, 2014 the Oak Harbor Planning Commission did recommend that the City 

Council approve the Preliminary Plat for Beckett Landing, application #PPL-12-02, submitted by 

Seattle Pacific Development, LLC, subject to the following conditions of approval: 

 

1. The applicant’s civil engineering construction drawings, landscape plans, land 

clearing plans, grading plans, and final plat drawing shall be in general conformance with the 

approved preliminary plat drawing titled “Preliminary Subdivision of Beckett Landing,” 

Sheet 1 of 2 dated March 24, 2014. 

2. The applicant’s engineering construction drawings and final plat shall be in 

general conformance with the approved “Buffer Enhancement Plan, Sheet 1/1” by Wetland 

Resources Inc. dated March 25, 2014. 

3. Prior to construction permits being issued, the applicant shall submit detailed 

landscape and irrigation plans in compliance with OHMC 19.46. 

4. The applicant shall post a three year maintenance bond to ensure landscaping 

completion and a minimum plant survival of 80 percent at the end of three years. The type of 

bond shall be approved by the City and must be submitted on forms supplied by the City of 

Oak Harbor. The approved bond shall be posted with the Development Services Department 

prior to the issuance of a building permit. The bond amount shall be 150 percent of a 

96



ATTACHMENT H 
 

 

landscaping maintenance bid amount submitted and approved by the City. The bid amount 

must include labor and materials. 

5. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall submit covenants for the 

commonly owned native vegetation areas which describe how these areas are to be preserved 

and maintained. The maintenance provisions shall at a minimum describe cutting, trimming, 

topping, pollarding procedures and removal of non-native vegetation, trash and debris. 

6. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall provide easements for all native 

vegetation areas contained within private lots which describe how these areas are to be 

preserved and maintained. The maintenance provisions shall at a minimum describe cutting, 

trimming, topping, pollarding procedures and removal of non-native vegetation, trash and 

debris. 

7. Prior to approval of final plat, the applicant is required to submit a copy of all 

proposed deed restrictions and covenants. 

8. The applicant shall include dedication language on the face of the final plat as 

stated in OHMC 21.40.040. 

9. Prior to approval of final plat, the applicant shall delete the existing language 

on the face of the plat referencing maintenance by the City of the pedestrian trail easement in 

Tract 999 and replace it with the following language: "The pedestrian bike connection is 

contained within a publicly accessible easement. All improvements and landscaping within 

the easement shall be maintained by the homeowners association. If fencing is installed along 

the length of the pedestrian bike connection it shall be no more than 6 feet high when 

adjacent to the side yard areas of adjacent lots and no more than 3 feet high adjacent to front 

yard areas of adjacent lots. Fencing shall not be installed within 10 feet of the terminus of the 

pedestrian/bike connection at either end." 

10. Prior to approval of civil engineering construction drawings, the applicant 

shall show bollard lighting at both ends of the pedestrian/bike connection for illumination 

and safety. The bollard lighting shall be shown on the construction drawings. 

11. Prior to approval of civil engineering construction drawings, the applicant 

shall show signs at both entrances of the pedestrian connection indicating that it is publicly 

accessible to bikes and pedestrians, but that motorized vehicles are prohibited. Such signs 

shall be depicted on the construction drawings and located in the adjacent landscape strips so 

as to limit the probability of conflicts with pedestrians and bikes. 

12. The applicant shall submit wetland and buffer monitoring reports in years 1, 

3, and 5 after initial planting to the City of Oak Harbor, Development Services Department. 

These reports must meet the recommendations contained in the Addendum to Wetland and 

Buffer Enhancement Report" and the Buffer Enhancement Plan, sheet 1/1 dated March 11, 

2014 and submitted to the City on March 25, 2014. 

97



ATTACHMENT H 
 

 

13. Prior to approval of final plat, the applicant shall submit a financial guarantee 

to ensure that the buffer enhancement plan is fully implemented and meeting performance 

standards. Guarantees shall be in the form of a surety bond, performance bond, assignment of 

savings account, or an irrevocable letter of credit guaranteed by an acceptable financial 

institution with terms and conditions acceptable to the city. Guarantees shall remain in effect 

for a minimum of five years until the city determines, in writing that the standards bonded for 

have been met, to ensure that the required mitigation has been fully implemented and 

demonstrated to function. Depletion, failure, or collection of bond funds shall not discharge 

the obligation of an applicant or violator to complete required mitigation, maintenance, 

monitoring, or restoration. 

14. The applicant shall place permanent native growth protection area signs as 

depicted on the Buffer Enhancement Plan by Wetland Resources, dated March 25, 2014. 

These signs shall be placed in three locations around the perimeter of the wetland adjacent to 

proposed lots 7, proposed lot 8 and Tract 997. 

15. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall install a 6-foot high solid fence 

along the proposed buffer perimeter line to block noise and light and provide added 

protection from humans and pets. 

16. Following approval of the Preliminary Plat, construction plans must be 

submitted to and approved by the Engineering Department prior to commencing any 

construction activities. These plans must include all street and frontage improvements 

(including sidewalk, curb, gutter, paving, traffic control, storm drainage, and street 

illumination), all pedestrian tract improvements (lighting, pathway, landscaping), and all 

existing and proposed utilities including, but not limited  to water, sewer, storm drainage 

(including a site drainage analysis), power, telephone, cable, and gas. All proposed 

improvements must meet the City of Oak Harbor standards for materials and installation 

practices. (Note to applicant: based on the final design of the stormwater treatment and flow 

control facilities, Tract 997 and/or the setbacks from the stormwater facilities may have to 

increase in size.) 

17 Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall grant an easement to the City of 

Oak Harbor which shall contain the proposed temporary turnaround on the west side of the 

site. This easement shall be granted for the purposes of pedestrian and vehicle travel. No 

improvements for lots 7 and 8 including, but not limited to driveways, landscaping, 

buildings, or fences shall be constructed within the easement for the temporary turnaround. 

The easement shall be reflected on the final plat drawing. 

18. Prior to issuance of construction permits, the applicant shall submit civil 

engineering construction drawings showing the proposed temporary improvements within the 

temporary turnaround area on the west side of the site. The temporary improvements shall 

include: 

98



ATTACHMENT H 
 

 

a. Curb, gutter, and sidewalk around the perimeter (circumference) of the 

temporary turnaround. The sidewalk shall be constructed of 6-inch thick concrete for the 

sidewalk to accommodate the loads of an emergency vehicle. 

b. Asphalt pavement section in accordance with City Standards. 

19. No portion of the temporary turnaround on the west side of the site shall be 

north of the face of the curb along the north side of N.W 7th Avenue. 

20. After extinguishment of the turnaround easement, and prior to issuance of a 

building permit for lot 7, the owner of lot 7 shall be responsible for the removal of the 

asphalt pavement section and concrete improvements from the easement area, restoration of 

appropriate areas to grass, and installation of pavement, curb, gutter, sidewalk, planter strip, 

(including irrigation if present in adjoining planter strip) street trees and other necessary 

appurtenances to complete the road frontage section in alignment with a westerly extension 

of N.W. 7th Avenue. 

22. The applicant must decommission or abandon in-place the existing private 

septic pressure line and drain field on the property in accordance with Island County Health 

Department and State of Washington Department of Health requirements prior to the 

issuance of construction permits on the subject site. 

 

3.2 This order is advisory to the City Council and may be accepted by the City Council, or 

rejected by the City Council after a public meeting. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THE 27
th

 DAY OF MAY, 2014. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Chair 

Attest: 

 

_________________________________        

Kathy Gifford 

Clerk to the Planning Commission 

 

99



ATTACHMENT E 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 

 
Planning Commission Draft Minutes 

5/27/14 

100



ATTACHMENT 4 
 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 1 of 6 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
May 27, 2014 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson, Greg Wasinger and 

Kristi Jensen 
Absent: Ana Schlecht and David Fikse 
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Assistant City 
Attorney, Nikki Esparza; Senior Planners, Cac Kamak and Ethan Spoo and 
Project Engineer, Arnie Peterschmidt 

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
No comments. 
 
MINUTES: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MR. FAKKEMA SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE APRIL 22, 2014 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
BECKETT LANDING SUBDIVISION – Public Hearing 
Mr. Powers reported for the record that last week the City was informed of a law suit by Oak 
Harbor West View Apartments LLC against Seattle Pacific Development, LLC (PC Attachment 
1).  A copy of the suit was provided to the City and copies were provided to the Planning 
Commission at the request of Mr. Jacob Cohen who is representing Oak Harbor West View 
Apartments.  Oak Harbor West View Apartments are an adjacent property to the west and their 
septic facilities that serve their property are located on the Beckett Landing Subdivision 
property.  Mr. Cohen notes in his cover letter his intention to ask the Planning Commission to 
either continue the matter pending a judicial outcome or to recommend denial of the preliminary 
plat pending a judicial outcome.  Planning and legal staff have reviewed this matter and are 
recommending that the Planning Commission proceed with the public hearing as scheduled.  
The basis for the recommendation is that the City should not and cannot adjudicate disputes 
between private property owners. The City’s obligation is to process the submitted preliminary 
plat application.  Any action by the Planning Commission other than the continued processing of 
the preliminary plat application may be viewed as the City interjecting itself into a private 
property matter. 
 
Mr. Powers noted that this is a quasi-judicial matter and there are questions the Assistant City 
Attorney will ask the Planning Commission in order to meet the “Appearance of Fairness 
Doctrine”. Assistant City Attorney, Nikki Esparza asked the following questions: 
 
Question No. 1 
Does any member of this Commission have any knowledge of or conducted business 
with either of the proponents or the opponents of this preliminary plat application? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – Commissioner Jensen stated that she has sold Seattle 
Pacific Homes as a real estate agent, but believed she could fairly and impartially make a 
decision in this matter.  
 

101



ATTACHMENT 4 
 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 2 of 6 

Planning Commission Member Peterson – Commissioner Peterson stated she lived in Crosby 
Commons which is now owned by Seattle Pacific and the homeowners association is having 
discussions with Seattle Pacific about a water bill that the homeowners association believes that 
Seattle Pacific should pay and Seattle Pacific believes they should not, but believed she could 
fairly and impartially make a decision in this matter.  
 
Assistant City Attorney Esparza asked if anyone in the audience thought that Commissioner 
Peterson and Jensen needed to recues themselves. There were none. 
 
Question No. 2 
Does any member of this Commission have any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in 
the outcome of this proceeding? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – No  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – No  
 
Question No. 3 
Does any member of this Commission know whether or not their employer has a 
financial interest in the property or area which will be impacted by the decision in this 
proceeding? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – No  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – No 
 
Question No. 4 
Does any member of this Commission live or own property within 300 feet of the area 
which will be impacted by the decision in this proceeding? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – No  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – No 
 
Question No. 5 
Does any member of this Commission have any special knowledge of the substance of 
the merits of this proceeding which would or could cause the Commissioner to prejudge 
the outcome of this proceeding? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – No  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – No 
 
Question No. 6 
Does any member of this Commission who believes that he or she cannot sit and hear 
this matter fairly and impartially, both as to the positions of the proponents and the 
opponents of this proceeding? 

102



ATTACHMENT 4 
 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 3 of 6 

  
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – Can hear this matter fairly and impartially  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – Can hear this matter fairly and impartially 
Planning Commission Member Freeman – Can hear this matter fairly and impartially  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – Can hear this matter fairly and impartially  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – Can hear this matter fairly and impartially 
 
Question No. 7 
Has any Commissioner had any ex parte contact regarding this matter? 
Planning Commission Member Fakkema – No ex parte contacts  
Planning Commission Member Wasinger – No ex parte contacts  
Planning Commission Member Freeman – No ex parte contacts  
Planning Commission Member Jensen – No ex parte contacts  
Planning Commission Member Peterson – No ex parte contacts 
 
Question No. 8 
Is there any member of the audience who believes because of the “Appearance of 
Fairness Doctrine” that any member should be disqualified? 
There were no comments from the audience. 
 
Senior Planner Ethan Spoo gave a PowerPoint presentation (PC Attachment 2) which gave an 
overview of the subdivision, review criteria, conditions of approval and staff recommendations. 
 
Mr. Spoo reported that the applicant is proposing a north/south street and an east/west street 
which would extend Prow Street and connect on the southern property boundary to Island Place 
development. The development will be connected to both the Meadow Ridge and Island Place 
developments. There will also be an eventual connection to NW Upsala Street.  In the interim 
there will be a temporary turn around area.  There are 22 lots proposed and there is a wetland 
on the southwest portion of the property and the applicant is proposing to preserve the wetland 
and a pedestrian connection that would connect to a public ally in the Island Place development. 
The wetland is protected under state and local law which requires a standard 70 foot buffer 
width.  The applicant is proposing to reduce the wetland buffer from 70 feet to 40 feet.  
 
Mr. Spoo explained that the application review before the Planning Commission contains the two 
applications, the Preliminary Plat and a Critical Areas Permit. 
 
The purpose of the preliminary plat is to confirm that the zoning regulations are met prior to 
allowing the applicant to submit detailed construction plans or a final plat application.  
 
Mr. Spoo read the following criteria from the code: 
 

(a) Whether appropriate provisions have been made for, but not limited to, the public 
health, safety and general welfare, for open spaces, drainage ways, transit stops, 
potable water supplies, sanitary wastes, parks and recreation, playgrounds, schools 
and schoolgrounds, and all other relevant facts, including sidewalks and other 
planning features that assure safe walking conditions for students who walk to and 
from school. 

(b) Whether the public use and interest will be served by the platting of the subdivision 
and dedications(s) 

103



ATTACHMENT 4 
 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 4 of 6 

Mr. Spoo stated that this is the criteria the Planning Commission will be basing their 
recommendations to the City Council on. 
 
Mr. Spoo reported that the Critical Areas Permit pertains to the wetland on the property.  The 
purpose of the permit is to protect the functions and the values of the wetland which is required 
by both state and City of Oak Harbor adopted law.  The applicant has submitted a Wetland 
Report an Addendum to Wetland and Buffer Enhancement Reports, and a Buffer Enhancement 
Plan. Together, these documents demonstrate compliance with the City’s critical areas code 
and show how the applicant will enhance the wetland buffer with additional native species, 
maintain these plantings, and monitor them for success. Staff is recommending approval of the 
applicant’s critical areas permit request. 
 
Mr. Spoo reviewed some of the unique conditions of approval below.  The conditions of 
approval are meant to cover the things that are not shown on the plans to make sure that in the 
project continues to meet the criteria for preliminary plat.   
 

9. Prior to approval of final plat, the applicant shall delete the existing language on the face 
of the plat referencing maintenance by the City of the pedestrian trail easement in Tract 
999 and replace it with the following language: "The pedestrian bike connection is 
contained within a publicly accessible easement. All improvements and landscaping 
within the easement shall be maintained by the homeowners association. If fencing is 
installed along the length of the pedestrian bike connection it shall be no more than 6 
feet high when adjacent to the side yard areas of adjacent lots and no more than 3 feet 
high adjacent to front yard areas of adjacent lots. Fencing shall not be installed within 10 
feet of the terminus of the pedestrian/bike connection at either end." 

15. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall install a 6-foot high solid fence along the 
proposed buffer perimeter line to block noise and light and provide added protection 
from humans and pets. 

 
Conditions 17 through 20 pertain to the temporary turnaround for emergency vehicles and the 
traveling public by establishing an easement.  Number 18 requires the applicant to install 
improvements for the temporary turnaround.  Number 19 requires that the alignment of the 
turnaround only affect lots 7 and 8. Number 20 is a condition discusses how the temporary 
turnaround improvements will be removed and who will remove them. 
 
21. The applicant must decommission or abandon in-place the existing private septic 
 pressure line and drain field on the property in accordance with Island County Health 
 Department and State of Washington Department of Health requirements prior to the 
 issuance of construction permits on the subject site. 
 
Mr. Spoo noted that Condition number 21 is the subject of the lawsuit.  
 
Mr. Spoo stated that staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct the public 
hearing and forward a recommendation to the City Council for approval of the preliminary plat 
and critical areas permit subject to the conditions of approval in Attachment B and to adopt the 
Planning Commission Findings of Fact in Attachment H. 
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:52 p.m. 
 
Jacob Cohen (PO Box 1602, Oak Harbor) commented on condition of approval number 21 
pertaining to the private septic facilities located on the Beckett Landing property serving the 

104



ATTACHMENT 4 
 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 5 of 6 

Heathrow Apartments on land to the west owned by his client, West View Apartments, LLC. Mr. 
Cohen posited that the City should revise condition of approval number 21 to include language 
reflecting that West View Apartments, LLC and the applicant must come to a mutual agreement 
regarding decommissioning or abandonment of the septic facilities or a judicial agreement be 
reached prior to construction permits being issued. 
 
Ry McDuffy (Everett WA) commented on two issues: (1) the presence of the private septic 
facilities on the Beckett Landing property and (2) requested revisions to the conditions of 
approval. Mr. McDuffy supported condition of approval number 21 regarding the septic facilities 
as written and proposed by staff. However, Mr. McDuffy commented that conditions of approval 
numbers 9, 10, and 15 be modified or deleted as follows: 

 Condition of approval number 9: The applicant prefers to that the City own and maintain 
the pedestrian connection in Tract 999 rather than it being owned and maintained by the 
City as proposed by staff and required by the City’s subdivision code. 

 Condition of approval number 10: The applicant does not agree that bollard lighting 
needs to be provided at both ends of the pedestrian connection and prefers that this 
condition be deleted. Staff notes that bollard lighting is required by the City’s subdivision 
code. 

 Condition of approval number 15: The applicant prefers a split rail fence, rather than a 
solid fence along the boundary of the wetland buffer. The applicant’s wetland 
professional recommended that a solid fence be provided to shield the wetland from 
noise, light, and intrusion by pets and humans, hence staff’s condition to this effect. 

The public hearing was closed at 8:05 p.m. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Commissioners had questions about the reduction of the standard 70 foot wetland buffer to 40 
feet and how they can achieve the reduction.  Mr. Spoo explained that reductions can be 
allowed by using the following methods, low impact land use credits, restoration credits and 
buffer averaging.  In this case the applicant is using all three methods.  
 
Ms. Peterson expressed concerns about taking the drain field from the apartments and 
encumbering another land owner with having to spending a significant amount of money to hook 
up to City sewer when they have a sufficient system.   
 
Ms. Jensen was concerned with the language in condition number 21.  She believed that the 
term “construction permits’ was not clear and should be changed to “civil permits.  She was also 
concerned the financial burden on the apartments who have been in existence for a long time.  
She didn’t think condition number 21 was detailed enough even with changing the language to 
“civil permits”.   
 
Mr. Powers explained that the condition of approval was not in any way related to whether or 
not the existing improvements were permitted or not. From the City’s perspective that is 
immaterial.  Staffs review of the preliminary plat application including the title documents that 
were submitted did not leave us any information that there was an easement so staff crafted a 
condition of approval that acknowledges that there are improvements on the property that serve 
another property. Our focus is on what is the logical thing to put a condition of approval on from 
a preliminary plat approval perspective and from a construction perspective.  Staff’s 
recommendation is that there should be no construction that takes place on this site until those 
facilities are taken care of in an appropriate and approved fashion.  

105



ATTACHMENT 4 
 

Planning Commission 
May 27, 2014 

Page 6 of 6 

 
Mr. Wasinger agreed that condition number 21 says that no construction will take place until the 
situation is resolved. 
 
Mr. Fakkema said that Seattle Pacific has submitted an application and under the requirements 
of the City code the Planning Commission has to recommend approval or denial of the 
application based on the code requirements and not on what is going on behind the scenes.  
We recognize that there are some other issues at play which will be resolved later in one way or 
the other and it doesn’t matter to us which way they get resolved as long as they get resolved.  
Until that happens nothing is going to happen other than the approval of the preliminary plat. 
The burden is on Seattle Pacific to correct the situation.  The worst we can do is nothing and 
have Seattle Pacific, having resolved the situation, come back later ask why we wasted years of 
their time. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Esparza confirmed that it is the legal opinion of the City’s counsel that 
this is not a proper basis for an extension of this particular timeframe without the consent of 
Seattle Pacific and Seattle Pacific has not given consent. 
 
Mr. Freeman said this is the first step in a long process and the 21 conditions address the 
concerns are sufficient and nothing will happen until the problem is resolved. 
 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED A MOTION TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE PRELIMINARY 
PLAT AND CRITICAL AREAS PERMIT FOR BECKETT LANDING SUBJECT 
TO THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL IN ATTACHMENT B AS WRITTEN, 
MOTION CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 3 IN FAVOR (FAKKEMA, WASINGER 
AND FREEMAN) AND 2 OPPOSED (JENSEN AND PETERSON).  

 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED A MOTION TO ADOPT 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION’S FINDING OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF 
LAW RECORD OF DECISION IN ATTACHMENT H.  MOTION CARRIED BY A 
VOTE OF 4 IN FAVOR AND 1 OPPOSED (JENSEN). 

 
 

106



ATTACHMENT E 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 5 

 
Summons and Complaint filed by 

  

Oak Harbor West View Apartments LLC 

against  

Seattle Pacific Development LLC 

107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



Item No. Bid Item Approx. 
Quantity Unit

Unit Price Sum Total Unit Price Sum Total Unit Price Sum Total Unit Price Sum Total Unit Price Sum Total Unit Price Sum Total

1
Mobilization and 
Demobilization 1 LS $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $112,490.00 $112,490.00 $110,000.00 $110,000.00 $92,000.00 $92,000.00

2
Project Administration & 
Controls 1 LS $65,000.00 $65,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $143,043.00 $143,043.00 $48,000.00 $48,000.00 $84,000.00 $84,000.00

3
Trench Excavation Safety 
System 1 LS $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $52,000.00 $52,000.00 $91,487.00 $91,487.00 $150.00 $150.00 $64,000.00 $64,000.00

4
Temporary Stormwater 
Pollution Controls 1 LS $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $51,000.00 $51,000.00 $23,527.00 $23,527.00 $20,500.00 $20,500.00 $16,000.00 $16,000.00

5 Site Work 1 LS $452,000.00 $452,000.00 $519,769.00 $519,769.00 $500,000.00 $500,000.00 $645,129.00 $645,129.00 $765,350.00 $765,350.00 $896,000.00 $896,000.00

6 All Other Work 1 LS $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $16,756.00 $16,756.00 $131,600.00 $131,600.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

7 Archaeological Delay 40 HR $285.00 $11,400.00 $1,000.00 $40,000.00 $700.00 $28,000.00 $557.00 $22,280.00 $185.00 $7,400.00 $575.00 $23,000.00

A1
Secondary Mobilization
and Demobilization 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $12,250.00 $12,250.00 $22,500.00 $22,500.00

TOTAL BID + WSST $727,637.80 $934,568.90 $1,069,608.00 $1,163,863.94 $1,190,536.75 $1,328,857.50

BIDS RECEIVED   May, 22 2014   10:00 am

Strider Const. Co., Inc.  
Bellingham, WA

McClure and Sons Inc.  Mill 
Creek, WA

Frank Coluccio 
Construction Co.  Seattle Jansen Inc.  Ferndale, WA

SRV Construction Inc.  Oak 
Harbor, WA Redside Construction LLC

WINDJAMMER PARK STORMWATER OUTFALL 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT

210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231


	Agenda for June 3, 2014 Council Meeting
	Proclamation for Explore Summer Reading Week
	C/A 4.a Regular Meeting Minutes for 05/20/14 and Workshop Minutes for 05/28/14
	C/A 4.b Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers
	Voucher Listings

	6.a Investment Policy
	Resolution 14-21
	Attachment A

	7.a Beckett Landing Preliminary Plat
	Attachment 1 - Planning Commission Recommendation
	Attachment 2 - Preliminary Plat Resolution
	Attachment 3 - Planning Commission Staff Report
	Attachment 4 - Planning Commission Draft Minutes 5/27/14
	Attachment 5 - Summons and Complaint re Oak Harbor West View Apartments LLC vs. Seattle Pacific Development LLC

	9.a Special Event Permit for Old Fashioned Fourth of July for Chamber of Commerce 
	Chamber of Commerce Permit Application

	9.b 42" Stormwater Outfall at Windjammer Park - Construction Contract Award with Strider Construction
	Bid Tabulation
	Strider Construction Bid Proposal

	9.c Public Works Truck Scale - Constuction Contract Award to C. Johnson Construction, Inc.
	C. Johnson Construction, Inc. Bid Proposal

	9.d Selecting AWC Delegates for Annual Business Meeting




